
 
 

PLANS COMMITTEE 
 

This meeting will be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via 
the Council’s website: charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees 
 
Please also note that under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting.  The use of any 
images or sound recordings is not under the Council’s control. 
 
 
 

To: Members of the Plans Committee  
(For attention) 

 
All other members of the Council 

(For information) 
 

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Plans Committee to be held in the Preston 
Room, Woodgate Chambers, Woodgate, Loughborough on Thursday, 26th May 2022 at 
5.00 pm for the following business. 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Southfields 
Loughborough 
 
18th May 2022 
 

AGENDA 
  

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 
 
2.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
3 - 5 

 The Committee is asked to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 21st April 2022. 
 
 

  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/karenw/AppData/local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/NU3M8P7G/charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees


3.   QUESTIONS UNDER COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 12.8 
 

 

 No questions were submitted. 
  

4.   DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS, AND OTHER 
REGISTRABLE AND NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS 
 

 

 
5.   PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
6 - 57 

 The list of planning applications to be considered at the meeting is appended. 
  

6.   LIST OF APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS 
 

58 - 78 

 A list of applications determined under powers delegated to officers for the period 
from 8th April 2022 to 15th May 2022 is attached. 

  
WHERE TO FIND WOODGATE CHAMBERS 
 
 
Woodgate Chambers 
70 Woodgate  
Loughborough 
Leicestershire 
LE11 2TZ 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

1 
 

Plans Committee - 21st April 2022 
Published – 26th April 2022 

PLANS COMMITTEE 
21ST APRIL 2022 

 
PRESENT:  The Vice Chair (Councillor Bentley) 
 Councillors Campsall, Capleton, Charles, Forrest, 

Grimley, Hamilton, Lowe, Savage, Tillotson, 
Howe, Seaton and Snartt 

  
  
 

 Principal Solicitor - Planning, Property and 
Contracts 
Group Leader Development Management 
Team Leader Natural & Built Environment 
Development Management Team Leader 

 Democratic Services Officer (SW) 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillor Fryer, Gerrard and Ranson 
 
The Vice-Chair stated that the meeting would be recorded and the sound recording 
subsequently made available via the Council’s website.  He also advised that, under 
the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, other people may film, 
record, tweet or blog from this meeting, and the use of any such images or sound 
recordings was not under the Council’s control. 
 

61. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24th March 2022 were confirmed as a correct 
record and signed. 
 

62. QUESTIONS UNDER COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 12.8  
 
No questions were submitted. 
 

63. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTERESTS  
 
The following disclosures were made: 
 

(i) by Councillor Charles – in relation to application P/19/1898/2 – A 
personal interest as he was Chair of Thurcaston and Cropston Parish 
Council and had input into their objections to this application.  He would 
leave the room during the consideration of this application. 

 
(ii) by Councillor Snartt – in relation to application P/19/1898/2 – A personal 

interest as he had involvement with a previous application for this site 
but stated he had no involvement with the current application and comes 
to the meeting with an open mind. 

 
(iii) by Councillor Forrest – in relation to application P/21/2186/2 – A 

personal interest as a member of Barrow Upon Soar Parish Council and 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

2 
 

Plans Committee - 21st April 2022 
Published – 26th April 2022 

having previously objected to the application. She would leave the room 
during consideration of this application. 

 
(iv) by Councillor Grimley – in relation to application P/19/1898/2 – A 

personal interest as he had previous professional relations with one of 
the organisations involved in the application but comes to the meeting 
with an open mind. 

 
64. PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
Reports of the Head of Planning and Regeneration, setting out applications for 
planning permission, were submitted (items 1 to 4 in the appendix to the agenda filed 
with these minutes).  Additional Items reports in respect of applications P/19/1898/2, 
P/21/2186/2 and P/20/2393/2 were also submitted to members at the meeting. 
 
In accordance with Plans Committee procedure 12.12, with the consent of the 
committee, the Vice-Chair approved two late speaker requests; 
 

(i) Mr Chris Lindley (agent) in respect of application P/21/2186/2. 
(ii) Mrs Sandie Forrest (Parish Councillor) in respect of application P/21/2186/2.  

 
In accordance with the procedure for public speaking at meetings, the following 
objector, applicants or their representatives and representatives of parish councils 
attended the meeting and expressed their views: 
 

(i) Mr James Botterill (agent) and Mr Glyn McAllister (Parish Councillor) in 
respect of application P/19/1898/2. 

(ii) Prof Jonathan Wright (objector), Mr Chris Lindley (agent) and Mrs Sandie 
Forrest (Parish Councillor) in respect of application P/21/2186/2.  

 
In accordance with the procedure for Borough Councillors speaking at Plans 
Committee meetings, the following Councillors attended the meeting and expressed 
their views: 
 

(i) Councillor Deborah Taylor in respect of application P/19/1898/2. 
(ii) Councillors Hilary Fryer and Pauline Ranson submitted a written statement 

in respect to application P/21/2186/2 to be read out by the Vice-Chair. 
 

 
RESOLVED 
 
1. that, in respect of application P/19/1898/2 (Callington Construction Ltd. Anstey 

Lane, Thurcaston, Leicestershire), planning permission be granted subject to 
the recommendations and advice notes set out in the report of the Head of 
Planning and Regeneration; 

 
2. that, in respect of application P/21/2186/2 (Williams Builders,  45 Beveridge 

Street, Barrow Upon Soar, LE12 8PL), planning permission be refused as the 
proposed development would lead to overdevelopment of the site and harm to 
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, resulting in less than 

Page 4



 

3 
 

Plans Committee - 21st April 2022 
Published – 26th April 2022 

substantial harm contrary to policies CS2, CS14, EV/1, BUS3, BUS4, BUS16 
and paragraph 202 of the NPPF, and that Officers be given delegated authority 
to devise the wording for the refusal. 

 
3. that, in respect of application P/20/2393/2 (Land off Humble Lane, Cossington, 

Leicestershire), planning permission be granted subject to the 
recommendations and advice notes set out in the report of the Head of 
Planning and Regeneration. 

 
4. that, in respect of application P/22/0169/2 (Manor Farm House, 21 Stanford 

Lane, Cotes, Leicestershire LE12 5TW), Listed Building Consent be granted 
subject to the recommendation and advice notes set out in the report of the 
Head of Planning and Regeneration. 

 
65. LIST OF APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  

 
A list of applications determined under powers delegated to officers for the period from 
12th March 2022 to 7th April 2022 was submitted (item 6 on the agenda filed with 
these minutes). 
 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. No reference may be made to these minutes at the next ordinary Council meeting 

unless notice to that effect is given to the Democratic Services Manager by five 
members of the Council by noon on the fifth working day following publication of 
these minutes. 
 

2. These minutes are subject to confirmation as a correct record at the next meeting 
of the Plans Committee. 

Page 5



Charnwood Borough Council 
 

Plans Committee – Thursday 26 May 2022 
Index of Committee Items 

 

Item Application 
No 

Applicant and Location, 
Description 

Recommendation Page 

     

1 P/21/0550/2 Mr Andrew Bamber 
Main Street 
Woodthorpe 
Loughborough 

That planning permission 
would have been Granted 
Conditionally subject to a 

S106 

7 

     

  Outline application with all 
matters reserved (except for 
access) for development of up to 
120 new dwellings with access 
from Main Street, Woodthorpe, 
Loughborough 

  

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



Item No.  1 
 
Application Reference Number P/21/0550/2  
 
Application Type: Outline   Date Valid:  15.04.21 
Applicant: Mr Andrew Bamber  
Proposal: Outline application with all matters reserved (except for access) for 

development of up to 120 new dwellings with access from Main 
Street, Woodthorpe, Loughborough 

Location: Main Street 
Woodthorpe 
Loughborough 
Leicestershire 

Parish: Loughborough  Ward: Loughborough 
Shelthorpe  

Case Officer: 
 

Susan Garbutt Tel No:  07714 846497  

 
Background 
 
This application is brought to plans committee as it relates to a major housing 
development, outside current limits to development and is considered a departure from 
the development plan and is recommended for approval. The application has also 
been called-in at the request of Ward Cllrs. Bolton and Brennan. 

Because the Local Planning Authority has not made a decision on the application 
within the agreed deadline, an appeal has been lodged with the Planning Inspectorate 
against the non-determination of the planning application and it is due to be heard by 
way of an Informal Hearing at a date yet to be scheduled. Once an appeal has been 
lodged against non-determination, a formal decision on the application cannot be 
taken by the Local Planning Authority but a decision must be made regarding how the 
application would have been determined. The resolution of Plans Committee will be 
used within the Council’s Statement of Case and in effect to decide whether to defend 
the appeal or not.   

 
Description of the Application Site 
 
The application site is currently in use as  a large single arable field measuring 5.85 
hectares, with Terry Yardley Way (A6004) and its tree-planted embankments to the 
north, Great Central Railway to the east and farmland and gardens beyond to Quorn, 
large arable fields to the south and the hamlet of Woodthorpe to the west. 
 
Woodthorpe comprises approximately 22 dwellings and includes a working farm, with 
a small country park to the west that separates the hamlet from recently developed 
housing and a local centre on Allendale Road Loughborough, with further development 
at Ling Road and Grange Park to the west and east respectively. 
 
The site has few features with a hedge  to the south, a farm track and public right of 
way (K35) along the southern boundary within the site and newly planted woodland 
along Woodthorpe Main Street to the west. Access to the existing field is from Main  

Page 7



Street and off the farm track/right of way, which continues within the site to cross the 
railway bridge. 
 
The adopted Development Plan shows the site is outside the defined Limits to 
Development of Loughborough and outside the Limits to Development of the hamlet 
of Woodthorpe.  The site is therefore wholly within the countryside.  The site is also 
within the mineral consultation area for sand and gravel.   
 
Description of the Proposal 

The outline proposal involves the development of up to 120 residential dwellings with 
all matters reserved except for access. The submitted documents include a revised 
parameters plan (for indicative purposes only) which intends to provide maximum 
flexibility and discretion when considering the subsequent layout of any reserved 
matters proposals. The submitted proposal includes some frontage plots to Main 
Street, Woodthorpe.  

Therefore, other than the proposed access from Main Street, it is only the principal of 
development that is being considered. It is a material consideration that the application 
site forms part of a larger proposed allocation within the emerging Local Plan 
(emerging Local Plan policy DS3 site HA15).  

The application is supported by: 

• Design and Access Statement (March 2021) 

• Planning Statement (March 2021, 03) 

• Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy (March 2021) 

• Badger Survey (Jan 2021) 

• Great Crested Newt Habitat Suitability Index Assessment (Jan 2021) 

• Biodiversity Impact Assessment  

• Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Sept 2020 - Rev A Feb 2021) 

• Transport Assessment 2/3/21 (v01a) 

• Travel Plan 2/3/21 

• Air Quality Report 2012 

• Desk Based Heritage Assessment 2020 

• Arboricultural Impact Assessment 2021 

• Noise Impact Assessment (18/0051/R1, 26/3/18, Rev 0) 

During the application, in October 2021 the appellant submitted a revised Air Quality 
Impact Assessment (Sept 2021), Landscape and Visual Appraisal (October 2021), 
revised Framework Travel Plan (5/10/21, v2) and Transport Assessment Addendum 
(8/10/21, v01).  A Revised Parameters Plan (LBS02/021), was submitted in November 
2021 for indicative purposes only and a revised Access Plan (JNY10416-01 Rev I) 
was submitted in December 2021. 

The appellant submitted an appeal against non-determination on the 14/12/21 
requesting an inquiry. The email from the appellant 15/12/21 confirmed that the appeal 
did not include any supporting documents that were not submitted with the application.  

The Planning Inspectorate determined that a Hearing was appropriate, and the 
appellant submitted three Statements of Case on 4/3/22; on matters of Planning 
(including an Educational Technical Note), Highways and Transportation (including a 

Page 8



Draft Statement of Common Ground) and Five Year Housing Land Supply.  A Draft 
Statement of Common Ground was received from the appellant on 30/3/22. An agreed 
Statement of Common Ground will be submitted with the Council’s  statement as per 
the requirements of the appeal.  

Since the appeal was submitted, the appellant submitted further information in relation 
to highways matters: 

• Woodthorpe Roundabout Highways Proposals JNY11123-RPS-0100-001A 

• Traffic Flows Diagrams (13 pages) 

• Road Safety Audit Stage 1 Final Report (Taylor Bowie Limited, February 2022, 
TBL19/272) 

• Park Road Roundabout Highway Proposals Swept Path Analysis JNY11123-
RPS-0100-003 

• Park Road Roundabout Highway Proposals JNY11123-RPS-0100-002A 

• Park Road Roundabout Highway Proposals JNY11123-RPS-0100-002 

• Draft Statement of Common Ground on matters of Highway and Transportation 
between Leicestershire County Council and RPS Consulting UK and Ireland 
on behalf of Parker Strategic Land 

• Updated Addendum to the Transport Assessment (RPS, v02 20 December 
2021) 

• Stage 1 Road Safety Audit Designers Response (RPS, v1, 21 February 2022) 

• Full Input Data and Results Woodthorpe Roundabout Proposed Signalised 
Gyratory (95 pages)   

• A6004 Park Road Roundabout Improvements ARCADY 9 roundabout module 
(16/12/21 20 pages) 

The above information has been added to the application file and publicised to 
interested parties, as requested by the Planning Inspectorate. A Mineral Resource 
Assessment was also received and the Minerals Authority was consulted.  

 
Development Plan Policies 
 
Development Plan policies relevant to the determination of this planning application 
are set out below. 
 
Charnwood Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted 9 November 2015) 
 
Policy CS1 Development Strategy  
Policy CS2 High Quality Design  
Policy CS3 Strategic Housing Needs  
Policy CS11 Landscape and Countryside  
Policy CS12 Green Infrastructure  
Policy CS13 Biodiversity and Geodiversity  
Policy CS14 Heritage  
Policy CS15 Open Spaces, Sport and Recreation  
Policy CS16 Sustainable Construction and Energy  
Policy CS17 Sustainable Travel  
Policy CS18 The Local and Strategic Road Network  
Policy CS24 Delivering Infrastructure  

Page 9



Policy CS25 Presumption in favour of sustainable development  
 
Borough of Charnwood Local Plan (adopted 12 January 2004) (saved policies) 
 
Where they have not been superseded by Core Strategy policies previous Local Plan 
policies remain part of the development plan. In relation to this proposal the relevant 
ones are: 
 
Policy ST/2 Limits to Development  
Policy CT/1 General Principles for areas of countryside   
Policy CT/2 Development in the Countryside  
Policy EV/1 Design  
Policy TR/18 Parking in New Development  
 
Leicestershire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (2019) 
 
Policy M11 Safeguarding of Mineral Resources 
 
Other material considerations  
 
The Charnwood Local Plan: Pre-submission Draft (July 2021) 
 
The Pre-Submission Draft Charnwood Local Plan (July 2021) was consulted upon 
from 12th July 2021 to 23rd August 2021 and submitted to the Secretary of State on 
the 3rd December 2021.  The Plan will now proceed to examination, with the hearing 
sessions set to begin on 27 June 2022.   
 
The Plan sets out strategic and detailed policies for the period 2019-37 and will replace 
the adopted Charnwood Local Plan Core Strategy (2015) and the saved policies of the 
Borough of Charnwood Local Plan (2004).  In accordance with NPPF paragraph 48, 
the relevant emerging policies in the plan may be given weight in determining 
applications, according to; (a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more 
advanced its preparation, the greater weight it may be given), (b) the extent to which 
there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the unresolved 
objections, the greater the weight that may be given), (c) the degree of consistency of 
the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the NPPF (the closer the policies in the 
emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).  
The following emerging policies are considered relevant: 
DS1 Development Strategy 
DS3 Housing Allocations (the site is part of emerging allocation HA15) 
DS5 High Design Quality 
LUC1 Loughborough Urban Centre 
C1 Countryside 
H1 Housing Mix 
H2 Housing for older people and people with disabilities  
H3 Internal Space Standards 
H4 Affordable housing  
T3 Car parking standards 
CC1 Flood Risk Management 
CC2 Sustainable Drainage Systems 

Page 10



CC4 Sustainable Construction 
CC5 Sustainable Transport 
CC6 Electric Vehicle Charging Points 
EV1 Landscape 
EV3 Areas if local separation 
EV6 Conserving and Enhancing Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
EV7 Tree Planting 
EV8 Heritage 
EV9 Open spaces, sport and recreation 
EV10 indoor sports facilities 
EV11 Air Quality 
INF1 Infrastructure and Developer Contributions 
INF2 Local and Strategic Road Network 
 
In accordance with NPPF para 48, the weight assigned to emerging polices is 
dependent upon: 
a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its 
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given); 
b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less 
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); 
and 
c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this 
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given)24. 
 
Relevant policies and the weight they should attract are discussed further in the 
sections below. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2021)  
 
Planning Practice Guidance  
 
National Design Guide 
 
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

Leicestershire Housing and Economic Development Needs Assessment (HEDNA) – 
2017 
 
Housing Needs Assessment 2020  
 
Leicestershire County Council Local Transport Plan (LTP)  
 
Housing Supplementary Planning Document (adopted May 2017 – updated December 
2017) 
 
Housing 5 Year Supply (31/3/22) 
 
Design Supplementary Planning Document (January 2020)  
 

Page 11



Leicestershire Highways Design Guide  
 
Charnwood Landscape Character Appraisal (2012) 
 
Charnwood Forest Landscape Character Appraisal (2019) 
 
Technical Housing Space Standards (2015) 
 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 
(as amended) 
 
The Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations set out the parameters, 
procedures and Regulatory detail associated with the screening, scoping and 
preparation of an Environmental Statement and consideration of significant 
environmental impacts of development. As this application is for less than 150 
dwellings it does not stand to be screened for an Environmental Impact Assessment.  
 
Conservation of Habitat and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
Equality Act 2010 
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (CIL) (as amended)  
 
Consultation Responses 

The table below sets out a summary of the responses that have been received from 

consultees with regard to the application.  Please note that these can be read in full 

on the Council’s website www.charnwood.gov.uk  

 

Consultee Response 

Leicestershire Lead 
Local Flood Authority – 
LCC (17/6/21) 

Leicestershire County Council as Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA) advises the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) that the site is within flood zone 1 (low 
risk) and that the proposals are considered acceptable. A 
number of conditions are recommended to be attached to 
any grant of planning permission.  

Housing Strategy & 
Support CBC (1/6/21) 

Seeks 30% (36 homes) affordable housing on the site at 
an appropriate mix and with 67% for affordable rent 
and/or social rent and 33% shared ownership. 

Minerals Planning 
Authority (11/4/22) 

Mineral Resource Assessment addresses policy M11.  

Leicestershire County 
Council – Highways  

Following the receipt of additional and revised information 
after the appeal was submitted, does not object to the 
proposal in principle subject to a number of conditions to 
provide the following: 

• A construction traffic management plan 

• Provision of the access arrangements 

Page 12

http://www.charnwood.gov.uk/


• Provision of the off-site highway works 

• Framework Travel Plan 

• Provision of drainage to prevent run-off into the 
highway 

• Closure of redundant access 

• Boundary treatment with the right of way 

• Trees in relation to the right of way 

• Right of way and construction works 
 

The following contributions are also sought: 
 

• Travel pack for the first occupation of each new 
dwelling 

• Six month bus passes (two per dwelling) for the 
first occupation of each new dwelling 

• £6,000 towards Travel Plan Monitoring 

• Appointment of a Travel Plan Co-ordinator 

Leicestershire County 
Council – Education 
(20/4/22) 

• Confirms that there is existing capacity within early 
years provision in the local area.  

• Confirms that there is existing capacity (213 pupil 
places) at primary schools within a two-mile 
walking distance of the application site and 
therefore no request for this sector can be justified.  

• Confirms there is an overall surplus of secondary 
school places within a three-mile walking distance 
of the site of 32 pupil places so no request for this 
sector is justified.   

• Requests £67,738.12 towards Special School 
Provision in Loughborough (primary and 
secondary).   

Leicestershire County 
Council – Libraries 
(5/4/22) 

Seeks a £3,630 contribution towards the enhancement of 
Quorn Library. 

Leicestershire County 
Council Waste Services 
(4/4/22)   

Confirms that there is existing capacity at  Loughborough 
Household Waste and Recycling Centre. Therefore no 
request for contributions is made.  

Quorn Parish Council 
(O25/5/21) 

Raises the following concerns; 

• The development would result in the loss of the 
separate identities of Loughborough and Quorn. 

• The countryside should be retained in the interests 
of biodiversity and recreation.  

• Unsustainable location with unacceptable 
mitigation against car use 

• Concerns that surface water will not be adequately 
managed on site and could lead to flooding beyond 
the site boundaries.  

Campaign for the 
Protection of Rural 
England (21/5/21) 

Objects to the proposal on the grounds that it is 120 at 
Woodthorpe, unsustainable development in the 
countryside, coalescence with Quorn, impact on 

Page 13



character and appearance of the landscape and setting of 
Woodthorpe, public transport not sufficient, loss of very 
good agricultural land, poor design that does not respond 
to local context and insufficient highway capacity.  

Charnwood Open 
Spaces (11/6/21) 

Seeks the following contributions: 
 

• An on-site multi-function green space (parks and 
amenity green space) 

• An on-site natural and semi open space 

• An on-site LEAP facility (all details to be 
approved) 

• On-site provision for young people or alternatively 
a £114,479 contribution towards new or 
enhanced young people’s provision within the 
locality 

• Off-site contribution of £39,524 towards off-site 
outdoor sports facilities  

• Off-site contribution of £13,551 towards 
enhancement of allotment facilities in the locality 

• Seeks £54,502.00 towards indoor pool space 

• Seeks £52,662.00 towards indoor courts 

• Seeks £7,776 towards indoor bowls provision  
 

NHS (Nov 21) Seeks a contribution of £60,757.49 towards the provision 
and enhancement of facilities at Outwoods Medical 
Centre and Park View Surgery.  

Ward Cllr. Brennan 
(9/6/21) 

Objects to the application on the following grounds: 

• Existing road network capacity and single point of 
access cannot sustain this development 

• Harmful impact on the identity and character of 
Woodthorpe 

• Oversubscribed primary and secondary schools 

• Woodland around Woodthorpe should be retained. 

• A section 106 agreement should secure funds 
towards healthcare, school places, traffic calming 

Wish application to be determined at Plans Committee.   

Ward Cllr. Gill Bolton 
(Shelthorpe Ward) 
(2/6/21) 

Objects to the application on the following grounds; 

• The loss of privacy and the local character of 
Woodthorpe Hamlet, particularly through having 
the access to the Development from Main Street 
and the inclusion of six properties that will sit 
directly on Main Street. 

• Woodthorpe Hamlet has only a single track road 
with no facility for car passing and is regularly used 
by walkers and others. 

• The Allendale Road roundabout already struggles 
to cope with the volume of the traffic in the area it 
currently serves.  An additional 200+ cars using 
this roundabout to access Main Street will make 

Page 14



the road exceptionally dangerous and may well be 
unable to cope with such a heavy increase in 
traffic. 

• There is no public transport within easy access of 
the proposed development meaning that cars will 
need to be used for most journeys including those 
to schools and places of work. 

• Shelthorpe ward has only one GP practice which 
is currently not accepting new patients.  120 new 
homes could potentially mean around 500 new 
residents needing to register with a GP. 

• Local schools are over-subscribed which again will 
mean car journeys to get children to school. 

• Conservation of habitat and local species.  In 
addition, the area being considered for 
development is used regularly by local residents 
within Shelthorpe Ward and other visitors to the 
area for cycling, walking, running and dog walking. 

• The traffic survey referred to in the planning 
application was conducted during the period of 
lockdown and is therefore unlikely to reflect the 
actuality of the traffic situation being faced. 

Request determined at Plans Committee.  

Neighbouring Ward Cllr. 
Shepherd (4/6/21) 

Supports the concerns raised by Quorn Parish Council 

Neighbouring Ward Cllr. 
Parton (9/6/21) 

Raises as an objection citing the following concerns;  

• The location is unsustainable as confirmed by 
previous appeal decisions 

• Lack of school places to meet the needs of new 
residents 

• Concern about the access point and 
pedestrian/cycle safety on the roundabout  

• Lack of public transport 

CBC Environmental 
Health  

Raises no objection. Existing residential properties 
adjacent to the railway do not experience noise from 
passing trains and lack of complaints suggests that use of 
the railway at night is limited. Noise insulation measures 
of the dwellings and gardens will be considered at the 
reserved matters stage. The updated Air Quality Impact 
Assessment is satisfactory.  Conditions required for a dust 
management plan and a noise condition.   

Natural England 
(20/5/21) 

No comments  

Loughborough and 
District Cycle Users 
Campaign (5/6/21) 

Concerns that due to the site location, there should be 
adequate storage for cycles. Potential for improved cycle 
access and the developer should contribute towards 
improvements to the roundabout to ensure it is cycle user 
friendly. Developer should contribute to public transport 

Page 15



on Allendale Road, nearest bus stops are Manor Road 
and Manor Drive. 

Great Central Railway 
(21/5/21) 

Objects to the application. The development would result 
in loss of views from carriages. The noise impact 
assessment does not consider the noise from trains 
overnight, as operations can be over 24 hours. Existing 
trees on the embankment are not planted for acoustic 
attenuation and can be removed at any time. The access 
road to the bridge is used for general repairs and 
maintenance and would be used by emergency services 
is required for accidents on the line.  

Network Rail (13/5/21) Confirms that the adjacent railway line is owned and 
operated by the Great Central Railway.  

Jane Hunt MP (29/6/21) Concerns raised regarding traffic impact on the 
Woodthorpe junction, safety at peak times, removal of 
separation between Loughborough and Woodthorpe and 
loss of recreational land 

 

Other Comments Received  

A petition was received 7/6/21 from Woodthorpe Residents Association with 21 

signatories.  The petition raises the following objections: 

• Destruction of the character and uniqueness of Woodthorpe 

• Previous refusals of development at the hamlet P/17/1555/2 and dismissed 

appeal  

• Development should meet local needs of the hamlet 

• Emerging policy shows hamlets are open countryside  

• Scale and density of the housing is not appropriate 

• New residents would need to travel for work 

• Loss of good quality agricultural land 

• Loss of important open land contrary to EV/18, EV/1 and H/16 

• Loss of the woodland copse around Woodthorpe 

• Dangerous access onto Woodthorpe roundabout 

• Unacceptable traffic impact 

• Will create a deficit in school places 

Haddon Way Residents Association object on the following grounds: 

• Lack of community consultation 

• No buffer between Woodthorpe and the new housing 

• Site entrance should not be from Main Street but the A6004 

• The site should have been an area of separation 

• Would support traffic lights on the roundabout to aid safe pedestrian movement 

• A new bus route is needed as the site is 1000m from the nearest bus stop 

• S106 monies required for schools and doctors surgeries 

• Sufficient parking spaces needed for new homes  

• The layout cuts the development off from the rest of the proposed allocation  

Page 16



• The buffer to the railway line should be increased 

• The Council should retain ownership of green spaces 

40  letters of objection have been received from local residents.  Objections raised are 

summarised as follows: 

• The development is in an unsustainable location 

• There is no need for extra housing in the village 

• There is no proven need for affordable housing 

• The adverse landscape impact 

• Highway/pedestrian safety of Woodthorpe roundabout  

• Should not be accessed from Main Street 

• Should be accessed from A6004 

• Traffic congestion in Woodthorpe from extra 240 cars 

• Pressure on existing infrastructure and services (doctors, dentists , schools) 

• Scale and design 

• Lack of services and facilities in the village to accommodate the new 

residents 

• No bus service on Terry Yardley Way or Grange Park, nearest bus stop is 

a long walk 

• Loss of green space between Loughborough and Quorn 

• Loss of a greenfield site 

• Loss of high quality agricultural land 

• Impact on ecology and loss of trees  

• Impact on the countryside 

• Flooding 

• Surface water drainage problems in Woodthorpe 

• Loss of privacy, and overlooking 

• Overbearing development on Woodthorpe   

• Lack of employment opportunities for the new residents 

• The development should be refused in line with previous decisions and 

appeal decisions for development at Woodthorpe 

• Other housing applications at Woodthorpe hamlet have been refused  

• Increased risk of anti-social behaviour  

• Impact on Woodthorpe during construction 

• No footway into the hamlet 

• More pollution 

• Noise and disturbance to Woodthorpe 

• Proposal is based on a draft allocation only 

• Loss of plantation at Woodthorpe  

• Woodthorpe would be merged/absorbed with the development 

• If approved, the development would link with P/20/1380/2 and P/20/1618/2 

at Woodthorpe and add 16 dwellings to the village 

• Impact on the unique hamlet of Woodthorpe, formerly part of the Beaumanor 

estate 

• The development should not be part of the village and should be screened 

from the village  

Page 17



• No benefits to Woodthorpe 

• Contrary to CS1, CS11 and CS25 

• Detrimental impact on recreational use of the area 

• Housing fronting Main Street would detrimentally change the style and 

character and heritage of Woodthorpe  

• Proximity of housing to the public footpath 

• Effect on listed buildings  

Relevant Planning History 

There is no planning history relevant to this site. 
 
  
Consideration of the Planning Issues  

 
The main issues are considered to be: 

• The Principle of Development 

• The emerging Charnwood Local Plan 

• Housing Mix 

• Landscape and Visual Impact 

• Design and Layout 

• ‘Prematurity’ and the emerging Local Plan 

• Open Space 

• Heritage 

• Impact on residential amenity 

• Noise and air quality 

• Highway Matters  

• Flooding and drainage 

• Ecology and Biodiversity 

• Minerals impact  

• S106 Contributions 
 

The Principle of the Development 
 
The starting point for decision making on all planning applications is that they must be 
made in accordance with the adopted Development Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  The relevant policies for the determination of this 
application are listed above and are contained within the Development Plan for 
Charnwood which comprises the Leicestershire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
(2019), the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015), those “saved” 
policies within the Borough of Charnwood Local Plan 1991-2026 (2004), which have 
not been superseded by the Core Strategy.  
 
The site is located in open countryside to the south of the hamlet of Woodthorpe, which 
is located to the south of Loughborough.  The indicative revised Parameters Plan 
shows the site access from the existing roundabout to the north-west and ‘Area A’ on 
Main Street Woodthorpe, proposed to be developed for 6 dwellings facing onto Main 
Street.   

Page 18



 
Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy represents the strategic vision of the Borough and is 
an expression of a sustainable growth pattern.   It takes the form of a hierarchical, 
sequential approach guiding development first to the northern edge of Leicester, then 
to Loughborough and Shepshed before directing development to service centres, 
other settlements and finally small villages and hamlets (including Woodthorpe).  The 
policy provides for at least 5,000 new homes at Loughborough including a sustainable 
urban extension west of Loughborough and 1,600 homes at Shepshed. The policy 
supports development at Woodthorpe that meets a specific local social or economic 
need where this has been identified, or supports sustainable businesses.   
 
Policy ST/2 defines the Limits to Development of Loughborough and Woodthorpe, and 
states that built development will be confined to allocated sites and land within Limits 
to Development, subject to specific exceptions (set out in policy CT/1).  The proposed 
development of 120 dwellings is outside the defined Limits to Development of 
Loughborough and Woodthorpe and does not meet any of the exceptions listed in 
policy CT/1.  Therefore, the proposed development is contrary to adopted polices CS1 
and ST/2. As the development proposed is in conflict with CT/1 it is therefore 
unacceptable in principle and Policy CT/2 is not engaged. 
 
In the period between the base date of 2011 and the latest full monitoring period of 
31st March 2022, 5,371 homes have been completed and committed at Loughborough 
and Shepshed up to 2028. Therefore, an additional 120 dwellings would not represent 
an overprovision of growth within this tier of the hierarchy and additional development 
would not therefore undermine the spatial strategy and strategic vision for 
Loughborough as set out in Policy CS1. The development of 6 dwellings onto Main 
Street Woodthorpe, separate from the other proposed dwellings on the site would be 
contrary to CS1 as the application does not meet a specific local identified need for 
Woodthorpe.  This is discussed further in the design section below.      
 
Policy CS11 of the Core Strategy is also relevant as the site is located in the 
countryside.  The policy requires new developments to protect landscape character 
and sense of place and local distinctiveness by taking account of relevant local 
Landscape Character Assessments, mitigate impact on tranquility and maintain the 
separate identities of our towns and villages. These impacts are considered later in 
this report.     
 
Policies CS1 and CS11 of the Core Strategy and policies ST/2 and CT/1 of the 
Borough of Charnwood Local Plan are considered the most important for making a 
decision on this planning application because they relate to the supply of housing and 
also the consideration of effects upon areas of countryside more generally.  
 
The NPPF is a material consideration in the determination of this application. The 
NPPF sets out that policies should be reviewed every 5 years and that Local Planning 
Authorities should identify a supply of specific deliverable sites to provide a minimum 
of 5 years’ worth of housing.  As of 9th November 2020, the Core Strategy became 
more than 5 years old. As required by NPPF paragraph 74, where Local Plans are 
more than 5 years old local housing need is to be assessed based on the standard 
methodology set out in national planning guidance. The standard methodology 
requires delivery of 1,160 dpa.  The Local Planning Authority can currently 

Page 19



demonstrate 3.04 years housing land supply (at 31/3/22) and the Core Strategy is 
more than five years old.  The housing supply position is set out in Appendix A and 
includes the response to the submitted Statement of Case in relation to Five Year 
Housing Land Supply. 
 
Accordingly, as the application involves the provision of housing, policies CS1 and 
ST/2 are considered out of date.  Policy CS1 can be given moderate weight as the 
overall growth strategy for the Borough is based upon directing development to the 
most sustainable locations, in accordance with the NPPF.  The weight that can be 
given to ST/2 is limited as the defined limits to development restrict housing 
development.  Policies CS11 and CT/1 are both over 5 years old, but are considered 
up to date as they are broadly consistent with national planning policy and do not have 
such a direct relationship with the supply of housing so can be given significant weight.   
 
As the application relates to the provision of housing, and the Council cannot 
demonstrate a 5 year supply, the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
set out in paragraph 11d) of the NPPF applies.  Paragraph 11d) states: 
 
“where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 
important for determining the application are out of date, granting permission unless: 

i. The application of policies in this Framework that protects areas or assets 
of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or 

ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this 
Framework taken as a whole.”    

 
Paragraph 11d has two parts, part (i) and part (ii) known as the ‘tilted balance’.  The 
report below sets out which part is considered to apply to this proposal.   
 
In conclusion, the proposed development of 120 dwellings in this open countryside 
location is contrary to the adopted Development Plan, policies CS1, ST/2 and CT/1.  
Compliance with policy CS11 is considered later in this report.  The development of 6 
dwellings at the hamlet of Woodthorpe, separated from the other proposed dwellings 
on the site, would be contrary to the adopted Development Plan, which seeks to restrict 
development at Woodthorpe to within Limits to Development to meet specific local 
need.  It is considered that weight can be given to the adopted policies, in the context 
of their age and the lack of 5 year supply.  Policy CS1 can be given moderate weight, 
policy ST/2 limited weight and policy CT/1 significant weight.  
 
The Emerging Charnwood Local Plan  
The emerging Local Plan has been submitted for examination and is a material 
consideration. Examination dates have been set for June and July 2022 and as such 
the Plan is well advanced. Emerging policy DS1 sets out the pattern of development 
for the Borough, and shows that 31% of new homes are to be allocated to 
Loughborough.  Policy DS1 directs 0% of housing development to hamlets (including 
Woodthorpe).  The hamlets do not have defined Limits to Development but are 
considered countryside where policy C1 applies. Policy C1 does not support the 
proposed development.  The development of 6 dwellings at Main Street, Woodthorpe, 
would therefore be contrary to emerging policies DS1 and C1.            

Page 20



  
Emerging policy DS1 states that new development is to be confined to allocated sites 
or within Limits to Development.  Policy DS3 proposes to allocate site HA15 (land 
south of Loughborough) for 723 dwellings and a new primary school.  The application 
site is the eastern-most part of the proposed allocation site HA15.  The draft allocation 
policy contains required measures including; structural landscaping, tree and 
hedgerow retention, built development to be restricted to the north of the east-west 
ridgeline, a buffer to Mucklin wood, retention and enhancement of the character and 
identity of the linear hamlet of Woodthorpe and its wooded setting, a green 
infrastructure strategy, and a primary school.  The policy states that prior to outline 
permission being granted for any part of the site, a masterplan is to be agreed for the 
delivery and phasing arrangements for the whole allocation, in order to achieve a 
comprehensive development and a development brief/design code is prepared to 
ensure a cohesive approach to the design and ensure impacts are satisfactorily 
mitigated.  It is considered that 6 dwellings on Main Street Woodthorpe, necessitating 
the removal of the establishing woodland, would be contrary to emerging policy 
DS3(HA15). 
 
The draft allocation HA15 does not include arrangements for the accesses to the site.  
The Highways Authority have confirmed that two accesses will be required to the 
whole draft allocation; likely to be from the roundabout to the north-west, and from 
Allendale Road, to the south-west of Woodthorpe.  It is therefore a material 
consideration that the proposed development could impact upon the future delivery of 
the emerging allocation. The submitted Design and Access Statement does not 
consider the relationship of the submitted application to the emerging allocation.   
 
It is acknowledged that the emerging Local Plan is not yet adopted.  However, weight 
can be given to the emerging policies, as set out in NPPF paragraph 48.  Policy DS1, 
DS3 and C1 have all been submitted for examination and are thus at an advanced 
stage in preparation.  There are unresolved objections to DS1 in relation to the amount 
of housing proposed and the spatial strategy.  There are unresolved objections to the 
draft allocation DS3(HA15) in relation to the scale of the development and 
environmental impacts.  There are only two unresolved objections to C1 relating to 
brownfield land and a specific site.  Emerging policies DS1, DS3 and C1 are 
considered to be consistent with the NPPF. Therefore, overall it is considered that 
limited to moderate weight can be given to these policies in the determination of the 
appeal.    In accordance with the latest Local Development Scheme (April 2022), the 
emerging Local Plan hearing sessions will take place by June/July 2022, with the 
Inspector’s Report expected October 2022 and adoption timetabled for December 
2022/January 2023. As the hearing date for this appeal is not yet set, the weight that 
can be given to the emerging policies will depend upon the date of the hearing session, 
and the progress of the emerging Local Plan.  The conflict with the adopted policies 
will be considered further in the planning balance below.   
 
It is considered that the emerging policies can be given limited to moderate weight, in 
accordance with NPPF paragraph 48. The conflict with the emerging policies will be 
considered further in the planning balance below.  
 
Housing Mix  
 

Page 21



NPPF para 60 requires that in addition to providing land to boost the supply of homes, 
that the needs of groups with specific housing requirements are addressed. Policy 
CS3 accords with this and outlines a requirement to secure an appropriate housing 
mix having regard to the identified housing needs and the character of the area and 
seeks that  30% of the 120 units should be affordable. The policy requires all new 
housing to be built to lifetime homes standards, where feasible. The Housing 
Supplementary Planning Document provides further guidance in support of this 
relating to how these units should be provided.  The policy generally accords with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and do not frustrate the supply of housing.  As a 
result, it is not considered that there is a need to reduce the weight that should be 
given to the policy. Lifetime Homes standard has been superseded by the new 
Building Regulations Part M4(2) and M4(3).  
 
Emerging policy H1 seeks a mix of house types, tenures and sizes to meet overall 
needs in the Borough in line with up to date evidence.  Policy H2 seeks at least 10% 
of new market homes on major sites to meet Building Regulations Part M4(2) 
standards for accessible and adaptable and an appropriate proportion of affordable 
homes to meet M4(2) and/or M4(3).  Policy H4 seeks 30% affordable housing from 
major housing developments (67% affordable homes for rent and 33% affordable 
homes for ownership). 
 
The proposal is in outline form and includes an undertaking to provide 36 affordable 
homes (30%).  The size, type, tenure and design of these are not currently known 
although it is anticipated that much of this detail would be established by later reserved 
matters.  It would, however, be important to set down parameters relating to, for 
example, the size distribution and delivery (phasing) of units, and it is suggested that 
this could be controlled and secured by a condition for both Market and Affordable 
housing.   The tenure(s) for affordable housing can be secured through the s.106 
agreement. 
 
Evidence of local needs is provided by the Housing Needs Assessment 2020 which 
recommends the following overall mix by size and tenure: 
 
 

 1 bedroom 2 bedroom 3 bedrooms 4+ bedrooms 

Market Up to 10% 20-30% 45-55% 15-25% 

Affordable 
Home 
ownership 

10-20% 35-45% 30-40% 5-15% 

Affordable 
housing 
(rented) 

60-75% 20-30% Up to 10% 

The above preferred mix is shown in the emerging Local Plan (paragraph 4.5, table 
6). 
 
The new Housing and Economic Need Assessment (2022) is due to be published at 
the end of May 2022.  An update on this will be provided to the Inspector when it is 
available.    
 

Page 22



It is suggested that a size, mix and profile to reflect this could be accommodated on 
site.  
 
With regards to housing mix, it is considered that a proposal which complies with policy 
CS3, and emerging policies H1, H2 and H4 could be achieved, subject to conditions.  
A condition to secure that the new dwellings meet lifetime homes standard is not 
sought as the standard is superseded. A condition is recommended to secure 
development in accordance with the new Building Regulations standards, as the 
emerging policy H1 is at an advanced stage, is in accordance with the NPPF 
paragraph 130 and has limited objections. An appropriate housing mix will be 
considered at reserved matters stage, in accordance with the latest evidence of need. 
The provision of 36 affordable units would be secured in the S106 agreement and is 
also a significant benefit of the scheme which should be given weight within the 
planning balance.   
 
Landscape and Visual Impact 
 
Policies CS2 and saved LP policy EV/1 require new development to respect and 
enhance the character of the local environment, including landscape, open and 
undeveloped nature of the countryside and safeguard important viewpoints, 
landmarks and skylines. Proposals should be of a high standard of design and respond 
positively to their context. Policy CS11 is important in considering the proposal as it 
seeks to protect the character of the Borough’s landscape and countryside by requiring 
new development to protect landscape character and to reinforce sense of place and 
local distinctiveness by taking account of local Landscape Character Assessment. It 
also requires that development preserve the separate identity of our towns and 
villages. These policies generally accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and do not directly frustrate the delivery of housing.  As a result, it is not considered 
that there is a need to reduce the weight given to these policies.  
 
Emerging policy EV1 states that development will be carefully managed to protect the 
Borough’s distinctive landscape and new development will be required to protect 
landscape character and reinforce sense of place and local distinctiveness and 
maintain the separate identities of our towns and villages.   Emerging policy 
DS3(HA15) states that development on the site will be supported that protects 
settlement identity and the landscape, including retention of existing trees and 
hedgerows to contribute to landscape setting and retain landscape character, retention 
and enhancement of the character and identity of the linear hamlet of Woodthorpe and 
its wooded setting. At this time, these policies can be given limited to moderate weight 
due to their compliance with the NPPF, stage in the plan process and limited 
objections.  
 
Public comments have raised concerns about the loss of open countryside between 
Loughborough and Quorn, impacts on recreational use of the site, that Woodthorpe 
should be screened and the loss of the plantation at Main Street.  
 
The submitted Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 
 
The application is supported by a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (October 
2021 v2.0). The Assessment describes the site as a single agricultural field with a tree 

Page 23



belt to the northern boundary, and an establishing tree belt to the west and more open 
boundaries to the east and south-west with scrub and scattered trees.   The site is 
contained by Main Street, Woodthorpe to the west, the A6004 to the north and Grand 
Central Railway to the east.  There is a public right of way within the site to the south-
west (K35).  The Assessment defines a study area (Figures 2 and 3 of the 
Assessment).  The study area includes the edge of Loughborough to the north-west, 
Quorn to the south-east, Barrow upon Soar to the east, Woodhouse and Woodhouse 
Eaves to the south and surrounding countryside up to 4km from the site. The study 
area includes Barrow Hill to the north-east, the A6004 to the east and high ground at 
Beacon Hill to the south-east.  There are no specific landscape designations for the 
site. The application site is located within National Character Area 73: “Charnwood” 
characterised by gently undulating and low-lying landform, with a wooded character 
and diverse habitats.   The Assessment notes that the visual impact of development 
can be limited by locating it close to existing settlements and additional tree and 
woodland planting around settlement fringes (paragraph 4.1.6).   
 
At the regional level, the site is within the Forested Ancient Hills and the Assessment 
notes that large scale modern development and loss of surrounding landscape 
features and coalition with surrounding settlements would be damaging to landscape 
character and lead to visual intrusion (paragraph 4.1.21).  The site is within the 
Charnwood Forest Landscape Character Area.  The issues for this area include lack 
of management of woodlands, hedgerows and trees and inadequate mitigation of built 
development (paragraph 4.1.29) 
 
At a District level, the south of the site within zone 4 and adjacent zone 8 of the 
Charnwood Forest Landscape Character Assessment (2019).  These areas include a 
gentle undulating landform and are influenced by the urban edge of Loughborough 
and the Great Central Railway.  The site is also defined within the Borough of 
Charnwood Landscape Character Assessment (2021) as within the Soar Valley 
Landscape Character Area (LCA) and on the boundary with the Charnwood Forest 
LCA.  The Borough’s Landscape Capacity and Sensitivity Addendum (BLCSS) places 
the site within zone 7 which is considered to have medium-low capacity to 
accommodate development, as development could compromise the separation 
between the urban area and Quorn. Part of zone 7 has been developed for housing 
(north of the A6004).  The Assessment quotes the BLCSS “Development could be 
appropriate in limited parts of the zone, subject to mitigation measures” (paragraph 
4.1.57). The Assessment considers the site is characterised by the Soar Valley, with 
the site within the river valley on the transition between the flattest pasture floodplains 
and the undulating arable fields.  The site slopes from south to north (56m AOD to 
50m AOD) towards the A6004. 
 
The Assessment concludes there will be no notable effects on the national landscape 
character, and negligible/slight adverse impacts on district landscape character with 
benefits from boundary retention, planting and open space. At a local level the 
landscape effects would be negligible/slight adverse, permanent but localised and 
minimised by retention of trees and hedgerows. The overall sensitivity of the 
landscape of the site is stated as low to medium. The magnitude of change would be 
medium, with a slight to moderate adverse effect overall. 
 
The Assessment considered visual receptors in the study area to include residents in 

Page 24



existing settlements, local road users and footpath users. The closest receptors are 
properties within Woodthorpe and would have medium to high sensitivity. Those 
properties would be impacted by removal of the existing establishing tree belt and the 
erection of dwellings.  The magnitude of change would be medium/high and the effects 
would be up to substantial adverse.   Properties on the edge of Loughborough are 
further from the site and effects would be negligible to slight adverse, due to screening 
and existing urbanising elements such as the road and roundabout.  The north-
western edge of Quorn is the closest part of Quorn to the site and properties on 
Woodhouse Road face the site.  But there are established tree belts along Woodhouse 
Road, trees/vegetation around Loughborough Grammar School playing fields (west of 
Woodhouse Road) and at ‘One Ash’ and so views are curtailed. Views from scattered 
properties/farmsteads on rising ground could have distant views of the site, but could 
be negligible/slight adverse.  Road users have been considered as having medium 
sensitivity.  The effect on the users of Main Street Woodthorpe is considered to be 
moderate to substantial adverse.  The impact on the users of the A6004 would be 
slight adverse.  Views from other roads in the study area would be heavily filtered and 
limited.   The users of the public footpath closest to the site would have high sensitivity.  
The effect on users of the public footpath adjacent the site would be substantial 
adverse during construction to moderate adverse during operation due to boundary 
planting, footpath surfacing, landscaping and open space. Views of the site from the 
footpath diminish once the footpath crosses the railway. Mid distance views from the 
footpath between Loughborough and Woodhouse are possible, but the effects are 
slight adverse to moderate adverse. The Assessment concludes that there would be 
no effects upon views from footpaths between Woodhouse and Quorn.  Views from 
Charnwood Forest would be possible, but with boundary planting to the south-west of 
the site, the effect would be negligible/neutral. Views from the Grand Central Railway 
recreational line would be reduced by the line being within a cutting and the 
development could reduce effects to slight adverse by dwellings being outward-facing 
onto green space adjacent to the railway line.   The conclusion of the Assessment 
does not include any recommendations.    
 
 
Assessment of Landscape Impact 
Having reviewed the Assessment and visited the site, the proposal would significantly 
alter the open rural characteristic of the site at a local level and replace it with built 
form.  In particular, it is considered that the development could have a significant effect 
on the landscape setting of Woodthorpe, and the visual receptors within Woodthorpe 
if not mitigated.  The indicative Parameter Plan shows the removal of the establishing 
tree belt within the site adjacent to Main Street and erection of dwellings within ‘Area 
A’ adjacent to Main Street outside of Woodthorpe.  The loss of the tree belt and new 
dwellings on ‘Area A’ would be detrimental to the landscape setting of the hamlet of 
Woodthorpe and increase the effect of the development on properties and road users 
in Woodthorpe.  It is considered that the slight to moderate adverse impact on 
landscape character and the substantial adverse visual effects of the proposal on 
properties and road users in Woodthorpe identified in the Assessment could be 
mitigated by the retention of the existing tree belt and the addition of a landscaped 
buffer to the edge of Woodthorpe. This view is supported by the landscape character 
assessments reviewed in the Assessment, which support the retention of landscape 
features and avoidance of the coalition of settlements, as this would be damaging to 
landscape character.   

Page 25



 
Concerns have been raised that the development would reduce the perceptible gap 
between Loughborough and Quorn. Whilst the development may be seen from a 
limited number of locations on the approach to Loughborough from Quorn, this 
development would be seen in the context of the wider urban settlement of 
Loughborough and partially contained by existing manmade urban features. The 
distance from the development site to Loughborough Road in Quorn would be 500m. 
It is not considered that this distance and reduced degree of separation would cause 
significant or demonstrable harm having regard for the settlement identity of Quorn. 
Furthermore, regard would be had within any reserved matters application for the 
layout and landscaping of the site.  Any application would be expected to accord with 
the aspirations of emerging local policy HA15 which seeks structural landscaping to 
break up views of the site and around Woodthorpe and to the sites eastern boundary.  

Overall, it is considered that there will be harm to the landscape character of the area, 
but that harm can be mitigated by securing by condition that the establishing tree belt 
in ‘Area A’ is retained and that a landscape buffer is secured to the edge of 
Woodthorpe and adjacent to the railway line and public footpath. With the condition, 
the new development would protect landscape character, take account of relevant 
landscape character assessments and maintain the separate identity of the village of 
Woodthorpe, as required by policy CS11.  A condition is also suggested to secure the 
retention of all existing trees and hedgerows.  The layout and design of the 
development would need to be carefully considered at reserved matters stage to 
ensure the development could fully satisfy policies CS2 and EV/1. With the 
recommended conditions, the development would include retention of existing trees 
and hedgerows to contribute to landscape setting and retain landscape character, 
retain and enhance of the character and identity of the linear hamlet of Woodthorpe 
and its wooded setting, as per emerging policy EV1.  
 
Therefore, it is considered that paragraph 11di) of the NPPF does not apply to this 
proposal and that paragraph 11dii) the ‘tilted balance’ applies.  
 
Design and Layout 
 
Policy CS2 of the Core Strategy seeks high quality design for new development, to 
create inclusive design and result in places where people wish to live.  New development 
should respect and enhance the character of the area having regard to scale, density, 
massing, height, landscape, layout, materials and access arrangements, function well 
and add to the quality of an area.  Development should provide attractive, well managed 
and safe public and private spaces.  Saved policy EV/1 supports development that is of 
a design, scale, layout and mass compatible with the locality and uses materials 
appropriate to the locality. These policies generally accord with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and do not frustrate the supply of housing.  As a result, it is not 
considered that there is a need to reduce the weight that should be given to them. 
 
Emerging policy DS5 requires development to make a positive contribution to 
Charnwood by responding positively to local distinctiveness.  Emerging policy H3 sets 
out internal space standards that would need to be met by the development and would 
be considered at reserved matters stage.  

 

Page 26



Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that the creation of high 
quality beautiful and sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the 
planning and development process should achieve and good design is a key aspect 
of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work. 
Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that permission 
should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities 
available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 
 
Public comments have raised concerns about the impact of the development on the 
character of Woodthorpe hamlet, the loss of the wooded area adjacent to Main Street 
and its replacement with dwellings and the merging of Woodthorpe with the 
development and the draft allocation.   Comments have also stated the density of the 
proposal is too high.  
 
As this proposal is in outline form, approval of the design and layout is not currently 
sought. The Parameter Plan is intentionally vague in order to provide maximum 
flexibility at the reserved matters stage.  This would allow for the reserved matters 
proposal to have full regard to the emerging local plan policy DS3(HA15) that 
allocates this site together with the adjacent land parcels to the south-west.   
 
The submitted Local Plan HA15 illustrative concept masterplan (page 43) shows the 
site boundary, housing parcels and structural landscaping to the railway line and the 
edge of Woodthorpe.   It would be expected that at that time, a masterplan will have 
been agreed between the different landowners that has full regard for the indicative 
masterplan within policy DS3 for site HA15.   
 
The application does not consider the need for a road link from the site to the 
remainder of the draft allocation.  This could be secured within the S106 agreement, 
to ensure future development is not prevented. 
 
The indicative Parameter Plan shows that ‘Area A’ is proposed to be developed 
generally in accordance with the guidelines in pages 94-98 of the Design and Access 
Statement March 2021.  This shows a continuation of the linear form and settlement 
pattern of Woodthorpe and the erection of 6 dwellings fronting onto Main Street. This 
would result in the loss of a large area of young trees.  The 6 new dwellings at 
Woodthorpe would be separated from the rest of the development by structural 
landscaping within the site.  The Parameter Plan does not indicate any proposed 
changes to the route of the right of way K35 from Woodthorpe to Craddock 
Drive, Quorn.  
 
As discussed in the landscape impact section above, it is not considered that 
dwellings on ‘Area A’ is an appropriate layout for the site.  The Proposed Access 
Arrangement and Indicative Internal Layout (JNY10416-01 Rev I) now show that ‘old’ 
Main Street will not include a footway and this is welcomed to retain its rural character.  
The northern part of Woodthorpe is characterised by scattered built form punctuated 
by open spaces and trees and thus reflects its countryside setting, despite its 
proximity to the edge of Loughborough.  To add six dwellings facing onto Main Street 
would be detrimental to the setting of the village and its character.  The retention of 
the establishing tree belt along Main Street would respect and enhance the hamlet of 
Woodthorpe and its wooded landscape setting.  

Page 27



 
It is noted that the appellants Planning Statement of Case refer to the Parameters 
Plan as indicative and that it was not submitted for approval (paragraph 1.5).  For the 
above reasons, it is not considered appropriate to approve the Parameters Plan.  
 
Therefore, a planning condition securing the retention of the established tree belt 
along Main Street and no housing onto Main Street is recommended. With the 
condition, it is considered that the outline proposal could meet the requirements of 
Policies CS2, CS11 and EV/1 of the Development Plan and national and local 
guidance in terms of design could be achieved for the site.  A condition is 
recommended to secure development in accordance with the nationally described 
space standard, as this policy is at an advanced stage, is in accordance with the 
NPPF paragraph 130 and has limited objections. In addition, the S106 will need to 
secure that a road link from the site to the adjacent land (part of the draft allocation 
HA15) is provided. 
 
Prematurity and the emerging Local Plan 
Emerging policy DS3(HA15) allocates the site (and adjacent land to the south-west) 
for residential development and a school. The policy states that before outline 
permission is granted for any part of the site, the Council will require a masterplan to 
be agreed, which includes delivery and phasing arrangements for the whole 
allocation, and the preparation of a development brief/design code to inform decisions 
on detailed/reserved matters applications. 
 
To grant outline permission before a masterplan and design code are prepared, would 
be contrary to emerging policy DS3(HA15).   However, this policy can only be given 
limited to moderate weight (as discussed earlier). The Council is satisfied that the 
development of the application site could take place without prejudice to the 
remainder of the allocation (HA15) provided safeguards are in place to prevent the 
‘sterilisation’ of the remainder. This would include that the application site includes a 
road of suitable standard linking from the access proposed at the north-west part of 
the site, unbroken and extending to the south boundary of the site without impediment 
to connecting to it for development further south. These provisions can be the subject 
of conditions and/or a s106 agreement.   
 
This issue is addressed in the Statement of Common Ground between the appellants 
and the Highways Authority at para 2.3 as follows: 
 
“This access will ultimately form one of the two points of access to the overall 
proposed allocation with the main access provided directly from Allendale Road 
further to the south. As part of the master planning of the site consideration was given 
to the potential for access directly from Terry Yardley Way however such a proposal 
would be contrary to LCC Policy IN5 which seeks to restrict access to A class roads 
with speed limits over 40mph. Accordingly the only options to serve the site are from 
Allendale Road and Main Street, and given the scale of the overall allocation site, 
LCC will require two points of access to the overall development.” 
 
On the basis of the current stage of advancement of the emerging Local Plan and 
appropriate safeguards as described above, the Council can accept that the 

Page 28



development can proceed in conflict with emerging Local Plan Policy HA15 insofar as 
the requirement for a comprehensive masterplan is concerned. 
 
If outline permission were to be granted, a reserved matters application would most 
likely be considered against the same policy, which would be given greater weight 
after Examination.    
 
Open Space 
  
Policy CS15 seeks to ensure adequate open space is provided to serve the needs of 
new development.  This policy generally accords with the National Planning Policy 
Framework and does not directly prevent the supply of housing.  As a result, it is not 
considered that there is a need to reduce the weight that should be given to the policy. 

Emerging policy EV9 supports major development that meets the needs generated 
by the development and provide on and off-site open space, sport and recreation 
facilities in accordance with our standards. Emerging policy EV10 states that 
developer contributions will be sought from major development to support indoor 
sports provision.   

The Design and Access Statement suggests that within the site there will be areas 
of green space incorporating amenity open space and play space. There is, 
however, no provision for older children,  sports or allotments.  Given the size of 
the site it is unlikely that these typologies could all be provided for within the site but 
a commuted sum to improve facilities elsewhere within the local area.  

The following open space provision is required for the development, in accordance 
with policy CS15: 

 

 

Typology Minimum requirement On-site or off-site 
contribution 

Parks  
 

0.09ha  On site as part of a multi-
functional green area 
combined with the 
Amenity Green Space 

Amenity Green Space 0.13ha On site as part of a multi-
functional green area 
combined with the Parks 

Natural and semi-natural 
open space 

0.58ha On site defined habitat 
areas managed for 
ecological value 

Provision for Children 1 LEAP facility On site LEAP 

Provision for young 
people 

1 facility On site 
facilities/equipment or an 
off-site contribution of 
£114,479 towards new or 
enhanced young people’s 
provision within 1km of 

Page 29



the site (Allendale 
Road/Grange Park) 

Outdoor Sports Facilities 0.75ha Off-site contribution of 
£39,524 to implement the 
recommendations of the 
Charnwood Playing Pitch 
Strategy, improvements 
at Shelthorpe Golf 
Course, Nanpantan 
Sports Ground, Derby 
Road Sports Ground  

Allotments 0.10ha Off-site contribution of 
£13,551 for the 
creation/enhancement of 
allotment provision within 
Loughborough (Park 
Farm allotments) 

Indoor Sports  Off-site contributions 
£54,502 towards 
2.91sqm of pool space, 
£52,662 towards 0.08 
indoor courts, £7,776 
towards 0.02 indoor 
bowls rinks  

 

It is considered that all the above are CIL complaint, except for the indoor sports 
contributions.  This is discussed later in this report.   

Overall, it is considered that the development could provide the necessary quantum 
of open space and that on-site shortfalls in open space provision could be mitigated 
against through appropriate contributions to off-site provision. Accordingly, subject 
to the above being secured by S106 obligation, the proposal is considered to comply 
with policy CS15 of the Development Plan. 
 
Heritage  
 
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as 
amended) states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for 
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning 
authority…shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its 
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
Therefore, significant weight must be given to these matters in the assessment of this 
planning application. 
 
Listed Buildings are designated heritage assets, and paragraph 199 of the NPPF 
states that: when considering the impact of a proposed development on the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). 
This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total 
loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.  

Page 30



 
Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy states that the Council will require development to 
protect heritage assets and their setting.   
 
Emerging policy EV8 states that the Council will support development that protected 
and enhances heritage assets and prevents harm to their significance and setting. 
 
Public comments have raised concerns regarding the impact on listed buildings.  
 
The site is located outside of but adjacent to the archaeological alert zone which is 
concentrated around the historic core of Woodthorpe. The submitted archaeological 
desk-based assessment identifies a low potential for buried remains. Given this 
context, it is not considered that the principle of development would be unacceptable 
on account of archaeological heritage impacts and any potential loss or harm to 
underground heritage assets could be mitigated with a Written Scheme of 
Investigation to cover further archaeological investigation, possibly in the form of a 
geophysical survey in order to better understand any underlying features. It is 
recommended that this is secured by way of a planning condition to be discharged 
prior to the commencement of development.   
 
The application Planning Statement states that the nearest listed buildings are 200m 
and 300m away with intervening fields and woodland planting and so are unaffected 
by the development. No Heritage Statement has been submitted.  
 
One grade II listed building is located within Woodthorpe at 80 Main Street (Renals 
Farm) which is to the south-western edge of the Hamlet approximately 260m from the 
sites boundary. The significance of the heritage asset as set out within the listing 
description states; “House, C17 with later alterations. Granite plinth timber-framed with 
brick infill panels. Entrance front (to south) rebuilt in brick, gable ended Swithland slate 
roof, timber-framed gabled rear extension. Massive external stone stack with offsets 
at west end, heightened in brick. Two storeys, irregular 4 window range (one blocked), 
C20 fenestration”.  
 
Given this listed building is entirely contained around large-scale farm buildings and 
existing development fronting Main Street, it is not considered that the development 
would have any direct visual impact on the setting of this listed building. The original 
use of the building as a Farmhouse does however have some experiential relationship 
with the surrounding Farmland, but given the distance from the site, intervening 
development and the land being under separate ownership, it is not considered that 
the development would result in any harm to the setting of this designated heritage 
asset. This is subject to a satisfactory layout, scale and structural landscaping scheme 
being submitted as part of any reserved matters application.   
 
One other listed building is located at One Ash (west of Loughborough Road, Quorn) 
225m from the site’s eastern boundary, and on the other side of the Great Central 
Railway to the site.  This grade II listed building is set within enclosed woodland and 
with the listing description stating: “Small country house. 1894. By Larner Sugden for 
W. Wright. Granite rubble stone ground floor with plinth, otherwise red brick with stone 
band and plain tile roof with stone coped gables and brick ridge and side stacks. In 
"Queen Anne" style, with 2 projecting gables, the entrance between. 2½ storeys of 3 

Page 31



sash and casement windows with shutters”.  
 
Given the enclosed wooded nature of the site and the lack of direct relationship 
between the house and the site, it is not considered that the development would result 
in any harm to the setting of this listed building. 
 
The Great Central Railway is also recognised as a non-designated heritage asset in 
its own right and therefore the effect of development adjacent to the railway and how 
this impacts the experiential use of the railway line as a heritage asset is a material 
consideration. The development would bring modern built forms in closer proximity to 
the railway line thus would change the experience of using the railway for a very short 
stretch of the line. Given the proximity of the line to the existing urban edge of 
Loughborough and its impact on the line, it is not considered that any harm would 
befall the heritage asset in this regard. As discussed above the Landscape and Visual 
Impact Assessment recommends that the site layout include open space adjacent to 
the railway line and dwellings facing the line, and this can be secured by condition.  It 
should be noted that no Station buildings or other infrastructure of any heritage 
significance is considered to be affected by the proposals.  
 
Overall, it is considered that the proposal will cause no harm to the setting of the listed 
buildings in the vicinity of the site and will therefore protect heritage assets and their 
setting. In accordance with Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy, paragraph 199 of the 
NPPF and emerging policy EV8. 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
Policy CS2 of the Core strategy and EV/1 of the Local Plan seeks to protect the 
amenity of existing and future residents. The Charnwood Design SPD (2020) also 
provides spacing standards and guidance to ensure an adequate level of amenity.  
 
Emerging policy DS5 states that new development will be required to protect the 
amenity of people who live or work nearby and those who live in the new development.     
 
Objections have been received with concerns raised over the potential loss of privacy 
and amenity from the development.   
 
The development would be visible from the existing occupiers of housing within 
Woodthorpe. Other views are likely to be available from dwellings to the north of Terry 
Yardley Way. The concerns of existing residents are noted and at reserved matters 
stage, a detailed assessment of the layout will be undertaken to assess amenity 
impacts. It is relevant to note that conditions are proposed to secure landscape buffer 
between Woodthorpe and new dwellings on the site.  It will also be necessary to 
ensure the position of any play area on the site is sufficiently distant from existing and 
proposed dwellings to prevent undue noise disturbance. The potential for noise and 
disturbance to the existing dwellings as a result of the new roads within the 
development is also a consideration.   
 
The amenities of the future occupiers of the development would be a consideration in 
the assessment of a future reserved matters application.    
 

Page 32



Therefore, the proposal could be designed at reserved matters stage to comply with 
the provisions of polices CS2 and EV/1, and emerging policy DS5, along with the 
guidance set out in the Design and Housing SPD’s to protect residential amenity. 
 

Noise and air quality  

Policy CS2 requires new developments to protect the amenity of people who live and 
work nearby and those who will live in the new development.  Policy CS16 states that 
new development will be supported that protects environmental resources including 
local air quality.   

The NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure new development is 
appropriate for its location, and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impact 
on health and quality of life.  Planning decisions should identify opportunities to 
improve air quality or mitigate impacts.  

Emerging policy DS5 states that new development will be required to protect the 
amenity of people who live or work nearby and those who live in the new development.    
Emerging policy EV11 states that the Council will support development that does not 
lead to a significant impact upon, and deterioration of local air quality resulting an 
unacceptable impact on human health, local amenity or the natural environment. 

Public comments have raised concerns regarding construction impacts on noise, 
pollution and disturbance.   

The application is supported by an Air Quality Report (WSP, 20/12/12) and Noise 
Impact Assessment (Cole Jarman, 26/3/18).  An up to date Air Quality Assessment 
was requested and submitted (WSP, Sept 2021).   

The 2021 Air Quality Assessment considered the potential air quality impacts during 
the construction and operational phases of the development.  The site lies adjacent to 
the A6004 to the north and the Great Central Railway line to the east. The report notes 
that the site is not within an Air Quality Management Area. The reports concludes that 
through good practice and mitigation measures, the effect of dust and particulate 
matter can be significantly reduced, and the residual effects of the construction phase 
will be negligible.  The traffic generated by the development would cause a very small 
increase in pollutant concentrations, leading to a negligible impact.  Detailed mitigation 
measures for construction traffic and a Travel Plan to reduce single occupancy trips 
are recommended. The assessment concludes that future residents would not be 
exposed to poor air quality.   

The Environmental Health officer advises that the general findings of the 2021 Air 
Quality Assessment are satisfactory. The report identified a low risk of dust impact 
from construction activities provided that appropriate mitigation measures were 
implemented. It is therefore recommended that a condition is imposed to secure the 
submission and approval of a Dust Management Plan.  

The Noise Impact Assessment (26/3/18) notes that the site is adjacent to the A6004 
to the north, the Great Central Railway to the east and existing residential dwellings to 
the north in Woodthorpe. The assessment assumes 2 storey development of masonry 
construction with a tiled roof. The Assessment recommends that dwellings should be 
built 40m from the edge of the nearest live carriageway of the road, and 25 m from the 
nearest rail of the heritage railway (paragraph 6.2.1) shown in gold on figure 
18/0051/F5.  Dwellings within the gold zone would require enhanced acoustic glazing 
and acoustic trickle vents.  In all other areas, dwellings would require standard thermal 

Page 33



double glazing (to windows/patios/balcony doors) providing a sound reduction 
performance of at least 30dBRw and appropriate vents.  Gardens located within the 
gold and blue zone would require acoustic screening; 1.8m for gardens facing the 
heritage railway and for gardens facing Terry Yardley Way screening in excess of 3-
4m may be required as the A6004 is elevated above the site.    

Extract from Noise Impact Assessment (26/3/18): Figure 18/0051/F5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Assessment therefore shows that mitigation measures will be required on the 
majority of the site.  

The Environmental Health officer advises that the Noise Assessment Report submitted 
confirms that the development site is exposed to a noise climate generally suitable to 
support residential end use. However certain parts of the site were likely to be 
impacted by rail noise. Further consideration of the potential impact of train noise 
should be considered at reserved matters stage when matters of layout, construction 
and orientation are considered.  A condition is therefore recommended to secure an 
appropriate glazing and ventilation scheme to be submitted at reserved matters stage, 
for all properties proposed in the blue and gold area of Figure 18/0051/F5 in the noise 
Impact Assessment (26/3/18).     

Therefore, subject to a condition to secure an appropriate noise mitigation scheme is 
considered at reserved matters, and a Dust Management Plan to mitigate dust impact 
from construction activities, the proposal is considered to meet policies CS2 and CS16 
and emerging policies DS5 and EV11.       

 

Highway Matters  

Polices CS2 requires new development to provide well defined and legible streets and 
spaces that area easy to get around for all.  Policy CS17 promotes sustainable travel 
and requires major development to provide walking, cycling and public transport 
access to key facilities and services, safe and well-lit streets and secure new bus 
stops/services where development is more than 400m from an existing bus stop.  
Policy CS18 requires network improvements where identified in Transport 
Assessments.  Policy TR/18 requires off-street parking to be provided for vehicles and 
cycles to secure highways safety and minimise harm to visual and local amenities. 

Page 34



Adopted standards are provided as a starting point to assess the level of provision. 
These policies generally accord with the National Planning Policy Framework and do 
not directly prevent the supply of housing.  As a result, it is not considered that there 
is a need to reduce the weight that should be given to them. 
 
Paragraph 110 of the NPPF seeks to promote sustainable travel choices. Paragraph 
111 of the NPPF seeks to ensure new development does not result in an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, or a severe residual cumulative impact on the road network.   
 
Emerging policy CC5 states that Council will support sustainable patterns of 
development which will minimise the need to travel and seek to support a shift from 
travel by private car to walking, cycling and public transport.  The policy states that we 
will support major development that secures, where possible, new and enhanced bus 
services, including new bus stops where development is more than a 400m walk from 
an existing bus stop. Emerging policy CC6 supports development that provides electric 
vehicle charging for each new dwelling with a dedicated parking space.  Emerging 
policies INF1 and INF2 seeks to secure appropriate infrastructure to mitigate the 
impacts of development.  
 
Public comments have raised concerns regarding the proposed access from Main 
Street, the impact on the Woodthorpe roundabout, pedestrian safety, the impact on 
the public right of way, traffic impact, parking provision, the lack of bus service, 
distance to nearest bus stops and traffic congestion in Woodthorpe.   
 
At the time that the appeal was submitted (December 2021), there was only one 
outstanding technical matter to be resolved which related to the Highway Authority’s 
position that, at the time, the applicant had failed to fully demonstrate that the 
development would not have an unacceptable impact on highway safety or cause 
severe harm to the highway network.  
 
The Local Highways Authority has set out its position in a Statement of Common 
Ground with the appellant.  The Local Highway Authority (LHA) has assessed the 
information submitted before and after the appeal was lodged including the updated 
addendum to the Transport Assessment and the revised proposed Access plan (rev 
I).  The Local Highway Authority has confirmed that it would not object to the 
application subject to the imposition of conditions and securing Section 106 
obligations. For the purpose of the appeal, the Local Highway Authority would not seek 
to object to the application or defend the appeal.   
 
Site Access 
The Statement of Common Ground on matters of highway and transportation sets out 
that the emerging allocation will require two points of vehicular access, the one 
proposed in this application and a further main access from Allendale Road further 
south (paragraph 2.3).    An access from the A6004 is not appropriate and the LHA 
and appellant agree this.  
 
The development is proposed to be accessed from Main Street, an adopted 
unclassified road, subject to 30mph limit. Main Street is accessed from the 5 arm 
Woodthorpe roundabout. 
 

Page 35



The submitted Access Plan (Rev I) shows that site will be accessed via the existing 
arm of the Woodthorpe roundabout located to the north-west, that currently serves 
Woodthorpe.  The access road would be amended to be 9.9m width from the 
roundabout, reducing to 6.0m width before the site entrance, and 5.5m width within 
the site.  A footway of 2.5m width would be provided along the length of the access 
road (along its southern side) and within the site. No footway would be provided into 
Woodthorpe village and the rural character of the lane into Woodthorpe (3.3m width 
with no footway) would be retained. A T-junction would be formed where Main Street 
Woodthorpe would join the access road.   
 
The Statement of Common Ground on matters of highway and transportation (agreed 
between the appellant and the LHA) states that existing bus services are within 800m 
of the site and that it is agreed that bus access within the site is not required (paragraph 
3.1).  As the proposed access would be 5.5m wide, it would not be sufficient width to 
serve a bus.  Given that the development is part of the emerging allocation which 
includes a school, it is not clear why the LHA consider that bus access will not be 
required along the access road.  There is currently no agreed masterplan for the 
emerging allocation, but a draft masterplan is in production for the remainder of the 
emerging allocation HA15, and it is anticipated that this will be submitted to the Local 
Plan examination.  The Council will provide this to the appeal Inspector when it is 
available.   
 
The Statement of Common Ground on matters of highway and transportation states 
that works to the site access can be secured by condition.      
 
Impact of the proposed access on the emerging allocation 
 
The Local Planning Authority and Local Highways Authority have sought clarity in 
relation to whether this proposed development of 120 dwellings on part of the 
emerging allocation HA15 would in any way adversely impact the delivery of the 
remainder of the housing on the emerging allocation HA15 (603 dwellings).    
 
The updated TA Addendum refers to the Emerging Masterplan for the allocation 
HA15, submitted by the site promoters to the Regulation 19 consultation. That plan 
has no formal status.  That plan shows the allocation accessed from Allendale Road 
and also off the Woodthorpe roundabout (Figure 2 in the updated TA Addendum).  
The updated TA Addendum assessed 4 scenarios, where various levels of traffic 
would be served off the two access points. The updated TA Addendum concludes 
that measures can be provided at the Woodthorpe roundabout junction in the form of 
partial signalisation of the roundabout to ensure that the development traffic from the 
whole emerging allocation is mitigated and the cumulative impact is not severe. The 
updated TA Addendum concludes that the appeal proposals do not prejudice the 
evolving masterplan and provide a suitable access that could accommodate the entire 
allocation, alongside a further access off Allendale Road.  
 
The Statement of Common Ground on matters of highway and transportation states 
that the LHA agree that suitable measures can be provided in the future at this 
junction to accommodate the impact of the emerging allocation (paragraph 3.1).  
 
Junction Capacity, Trip Generation and Traffic Impact 

Page 36



The proposal included junction capacity assessments for various junctions.  There is 

a single junction (A6004/Park Road) where the development will require 

improvements to the Park Road south arm, where the approach width will be widened 

to permit 3 lanes at the entry to the junction (plan JNY11123-RPS-0100-002A). The 

appellant has submitted a Road Safety Audit (Stage 1 Final Report, Feb 2022) of the 

proposed improvement measures.  The Statement of Common Ground on matters of 

highway and transportation states that the LHA agree that the junction works are 

suitable to address the impact of the development and the Audit is agreed.  

Internal Layout 

As the access to the site is the only matter to be determined in detail at this stage, 

and internal road layout would be determined at reserved matters stage. The 

parking provision on the site would be considered at reserved matters stage. 

As discussed above, it is considered necessary to secure via the S106 agreement 

that a highway link is provided from the application site to the rest of the draft 

allocation, to ensure the that the appeal site does not preclude further development 

in the future, and ensures two access points to the draft allocation can be provided, 

as required by the Local Highways Authority.   

Transport Sustainability 

The site access is approximately 800m from the nearest bus stop (the nearest stops 

are Farndale Drive, Maple Road and Griggs Road, a 10 minute walk).  The bus 

services 5, 11 and 12 are half hourly. There is an Aldi Store adjacent to the 

Woodthorpe roundabout, and the town centre is 2.6km away. The site is 1.1km to 

the nearest primary school (Beacon Primary Academy) and 2.1km from the nearest 

secondary school (Woodbrook Vale). A primary school is also proposed to be 

provided on the emerging allocation HA15.   Loughborough is also served by a train 

station to Leicester and the wider country (3.8km away).  

The updated TA Addendum states that the internal road layout can be designed to 

accommodate bus services (paragraph 5.8), but this is not the case, as the 5.5m 

width precludes bus use.  The Statement of Common Ground states that it is 

anticipated that bus services will be provided along Allendale Road, to serve the 

emerging allocation HA15.  Therefore, ‘ultimately bus services would be within 

400m of the site’ (paragraph 3.1).  However, the emerging policy HA15 does not 

secure bus provision along Allendale Road.  However, emerging policy CC5 does 

seek new and enhanced bus services where development is more than 400m walk 

from an existing bus stop, like existing policy CS17.    

Both existing and emerging policy seek major development to be 400m walk from 

an existing bus stop.  It is not clear from the Statement of Common Ground why the 

LHA are content that the development would not be served by a bus stop and why 

they are confident that a bus stop along Allendale Road will be provided by the 

emerging allocation, given that the policy can be given limited weight at this stage, 

and the site allocation policy does not require it.  

Travel Plan 

Page 37



The Statement of Common Ground states that the submitted Framework Travel 

Plan (v2 5 October 2021) could be delivered and monitored by a suitable condition. 

The Travel Plan needs to be updated to reflect the latest access design, and an 

updated Travel Plan can be secured by condition. 

Concerns have been raised by the public and the local cycling group about the need 

for cycle storage and improved cycle and walking routes. The travel plan commits 

that cycle parking for new dwellings will be provided. A 2.5m wide footway/cycleway 

is provided as part of the access arrangements that link to the existing cycle 

provision on the A6004. 

PROW K35 

The application states that the public footpath K35 will be incorporated into the 

proposals.  The Local Highways Authority have suggested conditions with regard 

to the public right of way within the site. 

S106 Obligations  

The Local Highways Authority are requesting the following obligations; Travel 

Packs for new residents (£52.85 per pack per plot), Six month bus passes (2 per 

dwelling) to encourage new residents to use bus services (average cost of £350 per 

pass), Travel Plan monitoring fee (£6,000) and appointment of a Travel Plan 

coordinator.    

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development has been assessed by 

an appropriate Transport Assessment.  The Local Highways Authority consider that 

in the context of paragraph 111 of the NPPF, the development should not be 

prevented or refused on the grounds of access and users of the local highway 

network or residual cumulative impact on the local highway network. The Local 

Highways Authority have confirmed that suitable measures can be provided in the 

future at Woodthorpe roundabout to serve the emerging allocation and that two 

accesses to the future allocation will be required. Conditions are proposed to secure 

a Construction Traffic Management Plan, access, off-site works, Travel Plan, 

drainage details, closure of redundant accesses and treatment of the right of way 

K35. S106 obligations are also recommended, as set out above.  

The development will not be within 400m of an existing bus stop and no new or 

enhanced bus service provision is proposed, contrary to policy CS17 and emerging 

policy CC5.  The Local Highways Authority consider that bus services will ultimately 

be provided on Allendale Road by the emerging Local Plan allocation for site HA15.  

However, given the limited to moderate weight that can be given to the emerging 

allocation at this time, and no requirement in the draft policy HA15 for bus provision, 

the timing of this provision is unknown.  The appellant and Local Highways Authority 

have not sought to secure bus service provision to serve the development. This 

weighs against the proposal.     

The other highways elements of the proposal are considered to meet policy CS17, 

CS18 and emerging policies CC5, INF1 and INF2.  Compliance with policies CS2, 

TR/18 and emerging policy CC6 can be secured at reserved matters stage.   

Page 38



 
Flooding and Drainage 
 
Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy seeks to ensure that new development is not at risk 
of flooding and that is does not cause flood risk elsewhere.  The policy requires 
development to manage surface water run off with no net increase in the rate of 
surface water run off for green field sites. This policy generally accords with the NPPF 
and does not frustrate the supply of housing.  It is therefore not considered there is a 
need to reduce the weight afforded to this policy. 
 
Emerging policy CC1 directs development to flood zone 1 and requires major 
development to be supported by a Flood Risk Assessment.  Emerging policy CC2 
supports major developments that use sustainable drainage systems in accordance 
with the drainage hierarchy, to provide multifunctional benefits and to secure their  
maintenance.  
 
Public comments have raised concerns regarding flooding and drainage in 
Woodthorpe.   
 
The submitted Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy (March 2021) shows 
the site is within flood zone 1 and has existing ditches long the southern and western 
boundary.  Water flows on the site flow towards the A6004. A small area adjacent to 
the A6004 is at high risk of surface water flooding (1 in 30 years).  The Strategy 
proposes to discharge surface water flows to the existing watercourse near the site, 
through an existing culvert, provide a stepped attenuation basin and swale and use 
permeable paving within the highway.  An indicative foul water drainage strategy has 
been provided that includes a pumping station to connect to the existing public foul 
sewer.  Finished floor levels will be raised 150mm to manage an extreme flood event.     
 
The Leicestershire Lead Local Flood Authority has assessed the submitted information 
and considers that the scheme in principle is acceptable at this outline stage, subject 
to the imposition of appropriate planning conditions to further define the components 
of the Sustainable drainage scheme at the Reserved Matters stage.  
 
Therefore, it is considered that in principle the proposed development meets the policy 
CS16 and emerging policies CC1 and CC2 subject to the recommended conditions,  
 
Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
Policy CS13 seeks to conserve and enhance the natural environment with regard to 
biodiversity and ecological habitats. The policy supports development that protects 
biodiversity and geodiversity and those that enhance, restore or re-create biodiversity.  
The loss of features of biodiversity and geodiversity will only be supported in 
exceptional circumstances where the benefit of the development clearly outweighs the 
impact. Where there are impacts, the policy requires mitigation or compensation of 
equal or greater value, likely to result in a net gain in biodiversity.  The NPPF states 
that planning decisions should minimise impacts upon and provide net gains for 
biodiversity. 
 
Emerging policy EV6 seeks 10% biodiversity net gain and the protection and 

Page 39



enhancement of habitats, species and networks.  Emerging policy EV7 supports the 
retention of existing trees and new tree planting.  Although the Environment Act 2021 
makes provision for 10% biodiversity net gain, the relevant sections of the Act have 
not yet been brought into force to make it a legal requirement and is not currently 
required by national policy.  Therefore, policy EV6 can be given only limited weight 
until the emerging policy is further progressed towards adoption.  
 
Public comments have raised concerns regarding the loss of woodland and trees and 
the impact on ecology.  
 
The nearest designated site is the Great Central Railway local wildlife site adjacent to 
the eastern site boundary.  
 
The application is supported by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) (Feb 21), 
Great Crested Newt Suitability Index Assessment (GCNSIA) (Jan 21), Biodiversity 
Impact Assessment Metric (v2) and Arboricultural Impact Assessment (Feb 21).  The 
site is currently in agricultural use, with trees mainly to the boundaries only.  There are 
two tree groups within the site, G7 to the west adjacent to Main Street (proposed to be 
removed) and G4 to the south.  There are hedgerows boundaries to the south, H1 and 
H2.  There is a large tree belt to the A6004 outside the site (G1). The PEA identifies 
the most notable ecological features on site as the hedgerows (which meet the criteria 
as a Habitat of Principal Importance in England and are a local BAP priority habitat), 
scrub and the broadleaved plantation woodland (a local BAP priority habitat).   The 
site contains badger setts and rabbit warrens.  The PEA makes several 
recommendations.  Of particular note are the retention of the broadleaves plantation 
woodland and boundary hedgerows, a Construction Environmental Management 
Plan, biodiversity enhancement and species protection.  The GCNSIA found no newts 
but recommends precautionary measures.   
 
The submitted Biodiversity Impact Assessment (BIA) Metric (v2) concluded that the 
development would result in a loss of 1.89 habitat units (11.51%).   
 
The Borough Council’s Senior Ecologist has confirmed that a final BIA metric is not 
required at this outline stage, but that BIA of the detailed layout will be required at 
reserved matters stage.  The Ecologist anticipates that the scale of the biodiversity 
loss will be larger than 1.89 units and in the region of 21%.  It is not clear that the 
habitats proposed within the calculation would be compatible with the open space 
requirements of the site.  The calculation is based upon an indicative layout only.  The 
Council will seek to avoid biodiversity net loss by securing on site mitigation.  Off-site 
compensation will be a last resort and should be on land within the appellant’s 
ownership, or exceptionally in the form of a payment to secure replacement provision. 
Because it is not clear at this stage that adequate on-site mitigation can be provided, 
it is possible that off-site provision/compensation will be required.  As this may include 
a financial payment, this will need to be secured within the S106 agreement.  
 
The Senior Ecologist considers that any works within 30m of the badger sett (to the 
south of the site just off site on the embankment of the railway) would require the sett 
to be closed.   There are likely to be sett chambers within the site.  Given the location 
of this sett and the need for increased onsite ecological provision, it should be possible 
to design a detailed layout to avoid the need for sett closure. A condition is 

Page 40



recommended to secure an badger mitigation statement to include an updated survey 
and avoidance of sett disturbance.  
 
Therefore, subject to a S106 agreement to secure a net gain in biodiversity, BIA to be 
submitted at reserved matters stageand the recommendations of the various 
submitted studies being secured by condition, it is considered that the proposal will 
comply with policy CS13 of the Core Strategy and the NPPF. 
 
Minerals impact 
 
Policy M11 of the Leicestershire Minerals and Waste Local Plan states that planning 
permission will be granted for development that is incompatible with safeguarding 
minerals within a Mineral Safeguarding Area in any of 5 circumstances.  Applications 
for non-mineral development in such areas, should be accompanied by a Mineral 
Assessment of the proposed development on the mineral resource beneath or 
adjacent to it.   A copy of the policy is provided at Appendix B.  
 
The site lies within the Mineral Consultation Area for Sand and Gravel. The Mineral 
Planning Authority was not originally consulted on the planning application and have 
submitted comments to the appeal requesting a Mineral Assessment.  The submission 
of a Minerals Assessment at this stage is supported by the Local Planning Authority.  
The appellant has submitted a Minerals Assessment and the Mineral Planning 
Authority has confirmed that they are satisfied that the Assessment accords with Policy 
M11 and therefore raise not objection to the proposal.  
Therefore, the proposal is considered to comply with policy M11.  
 
Section 106 Contributions 
 
Policies CS3, CS13, CS15, CS17 and CS24 of the Core Strategy requires the delivery 
of appropriate infrastructure to meet the aspirations of sustainable development either 
on site or through appropriate contribution towards infrastructure off-site relating to a 
range of services. As set out within related legislation such requests must be 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, directly related to 
the development and fairly related in scale and kind. Consultation regarding the 
application resulted in the following requests to meet infrastructure deficits created 
by the development: 
 

Education • £67,738.12 towards Special School Provision in 
Leicestershire 

 

Libraries • £3,630 contribution towards the enhancement of 
Quorn Library. 

Open Space Seeks the following contributions: 
 

• An on-site multi-function green space (0.09ha 
minimum parks provision and 0.13ha minimum 
amenity green space) 

• An on-site natural and semi open space (0.58ha 
minimum) 

Page 41



• An on-site LEAP facility (all details to be 
approved) 

• On-site provision for young people or alternatively 
a £114,479 contribution towards new or enhanced 
young people’s provision within 1km of the site 
(Allendale Road/Grange Park) 

• 0.75ha on-site provision or a £39,524 contribution 
towards off-site outdoor sports facilities to 
implement the recommendations of the 
Charnwood Playing Pitch Strategy, improvements 
at Shelthorpe Golf Course, Nanpantan Sports 
Ground, Derby Road Sports Ground  

• 0.10ha on-site provision or a £13,551 contribution 
towards off-site provision or enhancement of 
allotment facilities in the locality (Park Farm 
allotments) 

• Seeks £54,502.00 towards indoor pool space 

• Seeks £52,662.00 towards indoor courts 

• Seeks £7,776 towards indoor bowls provision  
 
 

Affordable Housing 30% (36 homes) affordable housing on the site at an 
appropriate mix and with 67% for affordable rent and/or 
social rent and 33% shared ownership. 

Healthcare  Seeks a contribution of £60,757.49 towards the provision 
and enhancement of facilities at Outwoods Medical 
Centre and Park View Surgery. 

Biodiversity Net Gain Because it is not clear at this stage that adequate on-site 
mitigation can be provided, it is possible that off-site 
provision/compensation will be required.  As this may 
include a financial payment, this will need to be secured 
within the S106 agreement.  The S106 will include the 
submission of a Biodiversity Impact Assessment. 

Highways • Travel pack for the first occupation of each new 
dwelling 

• Six month bus passes (two per dwelling) for the 
first occupation of each new dwelling 

• £6,000 towards Travel Plan Monitoring 

• Appointment of a Travel Plan Co-ordinator 

Road link to the 
adjacent land to the 
south 

The layout include a road link with no ransom strip to the 
wider allocation site (within the emerging Local Plan) to 
ensure that the development does not sterilise the 
potential for future development on adjacent land (part of 
emerging allocation DS3(HA15)   

 
These contributions (with the exception of the 3 indoor sports requests) are considered 
to be CIL compliant and would allow the necessary infrastructure to meet policy CS24.  
There are concerns regarding the contributions requested towards indoor sports. This 
is because they are based on a national threshold that does not consider existing 

Page 42



provision, local need and/or circumstances. As a result, it has not been fully 
demonstrated that the contribution towards indoor sport provision is necessary to 
make the development acceptable in planning terms in accordance with the 
requirements of CIL regulation 122.  
 
The appellant considers that the request for a S106 contribution to Special School 
Education is not justified as the development will generate 0.44 primary and 0.48 
secondary pupils, and not whole numbers of pupils.  The Education Authority requires 
special school contributions from developments of 100 dwellings or more with at least 
2 bedrooms. The nearest special school is Ashmount School and has a deficit of 
places.  The Education Authority will be submitting evidence to the appeal regarding 
their S106 request.  
 
A signed Section 106 agreement has not been provided. In the absence of a signed 
Section 106, the scheme would fail to deliver the necessary infrastructure provision to 
ensure sustainable development as required by policies CS3, CS13, CS15, CS17 and 
CS25.  However, it is anticipated that such an agreement will be provided in advance 
of determination of the appeal and, subject to agreement regarding its content, such 
issues would be overcome. 
 
 
 
Other matters  
 
Loss of agricultural land  
Public comments have raised concerns regarding the loss of high quality agricultural 
land. The site is grade 2 (very good) agricultural land, as stated in the SHLAA 2020 
(site reference PSH255, page 135), and shown on the regional agricultural land 
classification map (2010, published on Natural England website).  Policy CS16 
supports the protection of our most versatile agricultural land and paragraph 174 of 
the NPPF recognises the economic benefits of the best agricultural land.  The policy 
can be given significant weight.  The land is part of a wider area of grade 2 land in this 
area south of Loughborough, and a limited part of the grade 2 land within the Borough. 
The loss of this land is therefore considered to be a moderate negative impact of the 
proposal.  
 
Previous appeal in Woodthorpe  
The public comments have raised that previous appeal decisions for housing in 
Woodthorpe have been dismissed.  The proposed development is on agricultural land 
adjacent to Woodthorpe and is an emerging housing allocation DS3(HA15) in the 
Local Plan. The scale and location of the proposal is different to previous development 
proposals.   
 
Current housing applications in Woodthorpe 
There are two current housing applications on land associated with existing dwellings 
at Woodthorpe (P/21/1390/2 and P/21/1571/2) both for 7 dwellings each. These 
applications are pending decision and are not considered to be relevant to the current 
proposal as they are of a different scale, not on agricultural land and are not within the 
emerging housing allocation DS3(HA15) in the Local Plan.  
 

Page 43



Planning Balance and Conclusion 
 
Overall, the proposal has been carefully assessed against the comments and 
consultation responses received and the policies of the Development Plan, the 
National Planning Policy Framework and the emerging Local Plan.  
 
As there is currently less than 5 years supply of deliverable housing sites (3.04 years), 
this application would have to be determined on the basis of para 11d of the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development in the NPPF. It is not considered 
that 11di) applies to this proposal as the site is not protected for its habitat value or 
heritage value and the assessment shows that there would not be a clear reasons for 
refusal of the proposed development for reasons of ecological or heritage impact.  
Therefore, part 11dii) applies to the proposal and permission should be granted unless 
any adverse impacts which would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the Framework taken as a whole.    
 
The development would provide up to 120 new units of which 30% would be affordable 
homes, at a time when there is an acute need for these. The site offers the potential 
for high quality design and an acceptable mix of housing.  These are significant 
benefits of the proposal.  
 
The adopted Development Plan does not support housing development in this open 
countryside location outside of settlement limits, but the Plan is out of date and the 
Council cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites.   
Therefore, this reduces the weight that can be given to policies CS1, ST/1, CS11 and 
CT/1.  However, this needs to be balanced with the limited to moderate weight that 
can be given to emerging policies DS1 and DS3 which allocates the site for housing 
(as part of the larger allocation HA15 for 723 dwellings and a school).  Both the 
adopted and emerging plans recognise that Loughborough is a sustainable settlement 
and close to local facilities and therefore the compliance of the proposal with the 
overall development strategy for the Borough is given neutral weight in the planning 
balance.  
 
The proposal is located within open countryside and would be a loss of agricultural 
land.  There is identified harm to the landscape character of the area but with the 
suggested conditions to secure an appropriate layout and screening from the village 
of Woodthorpe the harm can be mitigated.  The development would therefore comply 
with adopted policies CS11 and EV/1 and emerging policy EV/1 which seeks to retain 
and enhance the character and identity of Woodthorpe.   The adopted policies can be 
given significant weight and the emerging policy limited to moderate weight.  Overall, 
the harm is mitigated and this weighs neutrally in the planning balance.   
  
The design and layout of the scheme is for future consideration at reserved matters 
stage.  The Parameters Plan is not considered appropriate.  With conditions to secure 
the retention of the existing tree belt at Main Street and the new dwellings meet space 
standards, the development could meet policies CS2, CS11 and EV/1.  These policies 
can be given significant weight. At this stage, the design benefits of the scheme can 
be given neutral weight.   
  
Subject to the addition of provisions within the S106 agreement to secure a road link 

Page 44



to the adjacent site it is considered that the future development of adjacent land, 
including draft allocation DS3(HA15), would not be sterilised by this proposal. This can 
be given neutral weight. To permit the outline application before a masterplan is 
prepared would be contrary to emerging policy DS3 (HA15). This policy can be given 
limited to moderate weight. Therefore, the conflict with the policy can be given limited 
to moderate weight at this stage.  
 
The development will provide on and off-site open space. This would be policy 
complaint open space.  Policy CS15 is given significant weight. The delivery of open 
space is a benefit of the development and can be given moderate positive weight.   
 
The development will cause no harm to the setting of listed buildings and thus complies 
with policy CS14 and emerging policy EV8.   The lack of harm can be given neutral 
weight in the planning balance.  
 
The noise impact on new dwellings can be controlled by mitigation and construction 
impacts can be mitigated also.  The development will comply with policies CS2 and 
CS16 and emerging policies DS5 and EV11.  Adopted policies can be given significant 
weight and emerging policies limited to moderate weight.  The mitigation of impacts 
can be given neutral weight in the planning balance.  
 
There is no objection from the highways authority to the proposed access 
arrangements, subject to conditions and S106 obligations.  This would allow 
compliance with CS18 and is given neutral weight in the planning balance. The 
sustainable transport links are limited in this location and the proposal would not 
contribute to a new bus service to serve the site.  This is contrary to policy CS17 and 
emerging policy CC5.  These policies can be given significant and limited to moderate 
weight respectively.  The appellant and local highways authority have not sought to 
secure bus service provision to serve the development.  This weighs against the 
development. Bus service provision may come forward as part of the emerging site 
allocation DS3(HA15) but this policy can be given limited to moderate weight.  Given 
that all other highways impacts are acceptable, the lack of bus service can be given 
moderate negative weight.  
 
The proposal is outline, and the impact on biodiversity will depend upon the final layout 
and design.   It is considered that a net gain in biodiversity can be secured in the S106 
agreement, with a Biodiversity Impact Assessment to be submitted at reserved matters 
stage.  The proposal would comply with policy CS13 which is given significant weight.  
Emerging policies EV6 and EV7 can be given limited to moderate weight.  The net 
gain can be given limited positive weight.     
 
The impact on minerals will be neutral and policy M11 is given full weight.  The impact 
is neutral overall.  
 
The loss of grade 2 agricultural land is a negative impact of the proposal.  This loss is 
given moderate weight as the loss is limited to a small parcel of the available grade 2 
land in the Borough.  
 
The appellant’s planning statement of case sets out that the development would 
provide employment in the construction phase and future residents would support the 

Page 45



economy by generating tax revenue and contribute to the local economy by utilising 
local services and facilities.  Given the scale of the development, these benefits can 
be given moderate weight.   
 
The S106 contributions and provisions will deliver necessary infrastructure to make 
the development acceptable in planning terms.  These are considered to be neutral in 
the planning balance.  
 
Applying the tilted balance in paragraph 11dii), it is not considered that the identified 
adverse impacts (namely the lack of a masterplan for the site as part of the emerging 
housing allocation, no bus service within 400m of the development and the loss of 
grade 2 agricultural land), would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits 
of the development (namely the delivery of housing including affordable housing, the 
delivery of open space, a net gain in biodiversity and construction employment and 
future benefits to the local economy), when assessed against the NPPF taken as a 
whole.    
 
Conclusion 
 
Accordingly, should members have considered a planning application, it is 
recommended that planning permission should have been granted subject to 
conditions and S106 contributions and obligations.  
 
The scheme to make it acceptable would need to provide necessary infrastructure to 
support the new development and mitigate its impacts and this would need to be 
secured through a Section 106 Legal Agreement.  The harm to infrastructure provision 
is considered to be significant and without a Section 106 securing the necessary 
obligations and contributions it would render the development unsustainable and 
would outweigh the benefits of the proposal.   
  
The appellant is currently drafting a Section 106 to be circulated to the Council for 
comment and agreement prior to the hearing sessions with the Inspector. The Section 
106 should secure the following: 

• 30% affordable housing provision (67% for affordable rent and/or social rent 
and 33% shared ownership).of an appropriate layout and delivery (phasing) 
etc. 

• Increasing capacity at local GP surgeries 
• Special needs primary and secondary school provision 
• Sustainable travel options : Travel Pack provision, including bus passes and 

Travel Plan and co-ordinator 
• On site open space provision and off-site open space contributions 
• improvement to Quorn library 
• Submission of a biodiversity impact assessment and to secure a net gain in 

biodiversity (Off site bio-diversity net gain should on site solution be 
impractical) 

• Road link from the site to the adjacent site to the south to avoid sterilisation 
of the adjacent land for future development   

 
Subject to the signing of a S106 agreement to secure the contributions and provisions 
above (and set out in full in Recommendation A), then a recommendation for approval 

Page 46



subject to conditions (as set out in Recommendation B) is recommended.  
 
Recommendation A: 
 
That the Planning Inspectorate be informed that the planning application would have 
been approved  by the Borough Council subject to the parties entering into an 
agreement under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, to secure 
improvements, on terms to be finalised by the parties, as set out below: 
 
 

Education • £67,738.12 towards Special School Provision in 
Leicestershire 

Libraries • £3,630 contribution towards the enhancement of 
Quorn Library. 

Open Space • An on-site multi-function green space (0.09ha 
minimum parks provision and 0.13ha minimum 
amenity green space) 

• An on-site natural and semi open space (0.58ha 
minimum) 

• An on-site LEAP facility (all details to be 
approved) 

• On-site provision for young people or alternatively 
a £114,479 contribution towards new or enhanced 
young people’s provision within 1km of the site 
(Allendale Road/Grange Park) 

• 0.75ha on-site provision or a £39,524 contribution 
towards off-site outdoor sports facilities to 
implement the recommendations of the 
Charnwood Playing Pitch Strategy, improvements 
at Shelthorpe Golf Course, Nanpantan Sports 
Ground, Derby Road Sports Ground  

• 0.10ha on-site provision or a £13,551 contribution 
towards off-site provision or enhancement of 
allotment facilities in the locality (Park Farm 
allotments) 

Affordable Housing 30% (36 homes) affordable housing on the site at an 
appropriate mix and with 67% for affordable rent and/or 
social rent and 33% shared ownership. 

Healthcare  Seeks a contribution of £60,757.49 towards the provision 
and enhancement of facilities at Outwoods Medical 
Centre and Park View Surgery. 

Biodiversity Net Gain Because it is not clear at this stage that adequate on-site 
mitigation can be provided, it is possible that off-site 
provision/compensation will be required.  As this may 
include a financial payment, this will need to be secured 
within the S106 agreement.  The S106 will include the 
submission of a Biodiversity Impact Assessment. 

Highways • Travel pack for the first occupation of each new 
dwelling 

Page 47



• Six month bus passes (two per dwelling) for the 
first occupation of each new dwelling 

• £6,000 towards Travel Plan Monitoring 

• Appointment of a Travel Plan Co-ordinator 

Road link to the 
adjacent land to the 
south 

To ensure that the development does not sterilise the 
potential for future development on adjacent land (part of 
emerging allocation DS3(HA15)   

 
 
Recommendation B:  
 
That the Planning Inspectorate be informed that the planning application would have 
been approved by the Borough Council subject to the following conditions and notes: 
 

1. Application for approval of reserved matters shall be made within 12 months of 
the date of this permission and the development shall be begun not later than 
12 months from the final approval of the last of the reserved matters. 
REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development shall not commence until approval of the following reserved 

matters has been obtained in writing from the local planning authority: -  
a. layout,  
b. scale,  
c. appearance and  
d. landscaping. 
REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

 
3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following plans and documents; 
• Location Plan LBS02/019 dated 3/3/21 
• Proposed Access Arrangement JNY10416-01 Rev I (Appendix B of 
Updated Addendum to the Transport Assessment, RPS dated 20/12/21)  
• Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy (WSP, March 2021) 
• Noise Impact Assessment (Cole Jarman, 26/3/18)  
• Air Quality Assessment (WSP, 2021) 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 
4. The layout details submitted pursuant to condition 2 above shall include:- 

i) retention of the existing tree belt adjacent to Main Street, Woodthorpe;  
ii) no new dwellings fronting onto Main Street; 
iii) a landscaping buffer between the hamlet of Woodthorpe and the new 
built development; 
iv) a landscape buffer adjacent to the railway line and the public footpath  
iv) a road link from the site up to the southern site boundary with the 
adjacent field.  
REASON: To make sure that a satisfactory landscaping scheme for the 

Page 48



development is provided so that it integrates into the landscape and 
surrounding area and complies with policies CS2 and CS11 of the Charnwood 
Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015). 

 
5. The details to be submitted pursuant to condition 2 shall include that 10% of 

new market homes will meet the Building Regulations Part M4(2) standard for 
being accessible and adaptable.  The affordable homes on the site shall meet 
the M4(2) and/or M4(3) standards for being suitable for wheelchair users, 
subject to assessment of viability and/or site-specific constraints.  
REASON: To meet the needs to the ageing population and people with 
disabilities and to secure a high standard of amenity for future residents in 
accordance with emerging Policy H2 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2021-37 and 
paragraph 130 of the NPPF. 

 
6. The details to be submitted pursuant to condition 2 shall show all units in 

compliance with the Nationally Described Space Standards and as accessible 
and adaptable accommodation. 
REASON: To secure a high standard of amenity for future residents in 
accordance with emerging Policy H3 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2021-37 and 
paragraph 130 of the NPPF. 

 
7. No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, 

vegetation clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include as a minimum: 
a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities; 
b) Identification of ‘Biodiversity Protection Zones’; 
c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) 
to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of 
method statements); 
d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity 
features; 
e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present 
on site to oversee works; 
f) Responsible persons and lines of communication; 
g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) 
or similarly competent person; 
h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs 
The approved CEMP: Biodiversity shall be adhered to and implemented 
throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved 
details.   
REASON: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from 
any loss or damage and prevent harm to wildlife in accordance with Policy 
CS13 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015). 

 
8. Prior to the first occupation, a detailed outdoor lighting scheme shall be 

submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
scheme shall accord with the recommendation R5 in the Preliminary Ecological 
Appraisal (Middlemarch Environmental, February 2021) and shall include full 
details of the proposed lighting and how the scheme has been designed to 

Page 49



avoid illuminating bat sensitive areas.  The development shall be implemented, 
and thereafter maintained, in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development does not cause harm to any 
protected species or their habitats in accordance with policy CS13 of the 
Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015). 

 
9. Notwithstanding the submitted Biodiversity Impact Assessment Metric (v2), the 

details submitted pursuant to condition 2 above shall include a Biodiversity 
Impact Assessment  Metric of the proposed layout.    
REASON: To protect and enhance habitats of importance to biodiversity 
conservation from any loss or damage in accordance with policy CS13 of the 
Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015). 

 
10. Full details of a scheme for the location of bat and bird boxes, to be integrated 

into buildings, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter and prior to the first use or occupation of any 
building with a bat or bird box, the bat and bird boxes shall be installed on that 
building in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from 
any loss or damage in accordance with Policy CS13 of the Charnwood Local 
Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) and the NPPF. 

 
11. Notwithstanding the Badger Survey (Middlemarch Environmental, January 

2021) a Badger Mitigation Statement shall be submitted with any reserved 
matters application. The Statement shall include:- 
i) how the development has been designed to avoid disturbance of the 
existing badger sett ; 
ii) a timetable for updating the badger survey and recommendations for 
how any increase in on site badger activity would be addressed. 
REASON: To ensure that the development does not cause harm to any 
protected species or their habitats in accordance with Policy CS13 of the 
Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015).  

 
12. Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved, a Landscape 

and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The LEMP shall include a landscape 
management plan, including long term design objectives, management 
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all public open spaces, 
ecological mitigation areas and surface water drainage system. Thereafter, the 
LEMP shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: To ensure that public areas are maintained at good quality and that 
drainage systems retain full function and to protect habitats of importance to 
biodiversity conservation on the site from any loss or damage in accordance 
with Policies CS2, CS11, CS13, CS15 and CS16 of the Charnwood Local Plan 
2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) and the NPPF and saved policy EV/1 of the 
Borough of Charnwood Local Plan.  

 
13. The landscaping details submitted pursuant to condition 2 above shall include:- 

i) the treatment proposed for all ground surfaces, including hard surfaced 
areas; 

Page 50



ii) planting schedules across the site, noting the species, sizes, numbers 
and densities of plants and trees; including tree planting within the planting belt 
to the east of the site; 
iii)       finished levels or contours within any landscaped areas; 
iv) any structures to be erected or constructed within any landscaped areas 
including play equipment, street furniture and means of enclosure. 
v) functional services above and below ground within landscaped areas; 
and 
vi) all existing trees, hedges and other landscape features, indicating clearly 
any to be removed. 
REASON: To make sure that a satisfactory landscaping scheme for the 
development is provided so that it integrates into the landscape and 
surrounding area and complies with policies CS2 and CS11 of the Charnwood 
Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) and saved policy EV/1 of the 
Borough of Charnwood Local Plan. 

 
14. The existing trees and hedgerows identified in the Arboricultural Impact 

Assessment, (Middlemarch Environmental, February 2021)  shall be retained 
and shall not be felled, lopped, topped or uprooted. Any trees removed, dying, 
being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased shall be replaced with 
trees of such size and species as previously agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority within one year of the date of any such loss, for a period of 
5 years from the date development begins. 
REASON: In the interests of the appearance of the area and local biodiversity 
in accordance with Policy CS13 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core 
Strategy (2015). 

 
15. The details submitted pursuant to condition 2 above shall include the following 

minimum amounts and typologies of open space:- 
• An on-site multi-function green space (0.09ha minimum parks provision 
and 0.13ha minimum amenity green space) 
• An 0.58ha on-site natural and semi open space 
• An on-site LEAP facility  
REASON: To ensure that the open space needs of future residents are met at 
a level that complies with Policy CS15 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 
Core Strategy (2015). 

 
16. The details submitted pursuant to condition 2 above shall include full details of 

existing and proposed ground levels and finished floor levels of all buildings 
relative to the proposed ground levels. The development shall thereafter be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: To make sure that the development is carried out in a way which is 
in character with its surroundings and ensure compliance with policies CS2 and 
of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) and associated 
national and local guidance. 

 
17. No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until 

such time as a surface water drainage scheme has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by the Local planning Authority. The drainage scheme shall 
be constructed and completed in accordance with the approved plans before 

Page 51



the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved . 
REASON: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and disposal 
of surface water from the site in accordance with policies CS2 and CS16 of the 
Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) and the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 
18. No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until 

such time as details in relation to the management of surface water on site 
during construction of the development has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by the Local planning Authority.  The approved details shall be 
adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To prevent and increase on flood risk, maintain the existing surface 
water run-off quality, and to prevent damage to the final surface water 
management system, through the entire development construction phase in 
accordance with policies CS2 and CS16 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-
2028 Core Strategy (2015) and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2021)..  

 
19. No occupation of the development approved by this planning permission shall 

take place until such time as details in relation to the long-term maintenance of 
the surface water drainage system within the development have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
surface water drainage system scheme shall be thereafter managed and 
maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON:  To establish a suitable maintenance regime that may be monitored 
over time; that will ensure the long-term performance, both in terms of flood risk 
and water quality, of the surface water drainage system (including sustainable 
drainage systems within the proposed development in accordance with policies 
CS2 and CS16 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) 
and the National Planning Policy Framework (2021).  

 
20. No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until 

such time as infiltration testing has been carried out (or suitable evidence to 
preclude testing) to confirm or otherwise the suitability of the site for the use of 
infiltration as a drainage element, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To demonstrate that the site is suitable (or otherwise) for the use of 
infiltration techniques as part of the drainage strategy in accordance with 
policies CS2 and CS16 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy 
(2015) and the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 
21. The layout details submitted pursuant to condition 2 above shall include a 

façade noise map identifying potential noise levels at each dwelling within the 
blue and gold zones shown on Figure 18/0051/F5 (page 19 of the Noise Impact 
Assessment Report 18/0051/R1 dated 26/3/18).  This noise façade map shall 
be accompanied by a Noise Mitigation Scheme   which confirms necessary 
glazing and ventilation requirements to control noise within habitable rooms and 
mitigation for external amenity areas to achieve acoustic standards detailed 
within BS 8233:2014.  

Page 52



Reason: To protect the amenity of future residents in accordance with policies 
CS2 and CS16 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015). 

 
22. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition until a 

Construction Management Plan, has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The statement shall provide for at a minimum: 
a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b) The routeing of HGVs to and from the site; 
c) Loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
d) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
e) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
f) Wheel washing facilities including type of operation (automated, water 
recycling etc) and road sweeping; 
g) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
h) A scheme for recycling/ disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works; 
i) Delivery, demolition and construction working hours; 
The approved Construction Management Plan shall be adhered to throughout 
the construction period for the development. 
REASON: To reduce the possibility of deleterious material (mud, stones etc.) 
being deposited in the highway and becoming a hazard for road users, to 
ensure that construction traffic does not use unsatisfactory roads and lead to 
on-street parking problems in the area, and to ensure the environment is 
protected during construction in accordance with policies CS2, CS16 and CS17 
of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015). 

 
23. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time 

as the access arrangements and off-site improvements shown on RPS drawing 
number JNY10416-01 Revision I ‘Proposed Access Arrangement & indicative 
internal Layout - Phase 1’ have been implemented in full. 
REASON: To ensure that vehicles entering and leaving the site may pass each 
other clear of the highway, in a slow and controlled manner, and to mitigate the 
impact of development, in the interests of general highway safety and in 
accordance with policies CS2 and CS17 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-
2028 Core Strategy (2015) and with the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2021). 

 
24. No part of the development shall be occupied until such time as the offsite works 

shown on RPS drawing number JNY11123-RPS-0100-002 Revision A, ’Park 
road Roundabout Highway Proposals’ have been implemented in full. 
REASON: To mitigate the impact of the development, in the general interests 
of highway safety and in accordance with policies CS2 and CS17 of the 
Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) and the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 
25. Notwithstanding the RPS Framework Travel Plan (version 2 dated 05 October 

2021) a revised Framework Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to first occupation.  The revised 
Framework Travel Plan shall be implemented fully in accordance with its 

Page 53



content.  
REASON: To reduce the need to travel by single occupancy vehicle and to 
promote the use of sustainable modes of transport in accordance with policies 
CS2 and CS17 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) 
and the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 
26. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time 

as site drainage details have been provided to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter surface water shall not drain into the Public 
Highway and thereafter shall be so maintained. 
REASON: To reduce the possibility of surface water from the site being 
deposited in the highway causing dangers to road users in accordance with 
policies CS2 and CS17 of the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy 
(2015) and the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 
27. Prior to construction, any changes to the existing boundary treatment currently 

separating the application site from the Public Right of Way (Footpath K35), 
must be approved by the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the 
principles set out in the Leicestershire County Council’s Guidance Notes for 
Developers. 
REASON: In the interests of protecting and enhancing Public Rights of Way 
and access in accordance with policies CS2 and CS17 of the Charnwood Local 
Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) and Paragraph 100 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2021).  

 
28. No trees or shrubs shall be planted within 1 metre of the edge of the Public 

Right of Way (Footpath K35). Any trees or shrubs planted alongside a Public 
Right of Way should be of a non-invasive species. 
REASON: to prevent overgrowth in the interests of protecting and enhancing 
Public Rights of Way and access in accordance with policies CS2 and CS17 of 
the Charnwood Local Plan 2011-2028 Core Strategy (2015) and Paragraph 100 
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 
Informatives: 
 

1. The Surface Water Drainage Scheme shall include the utilisation of holding 
sustainable drainage techniques with the incorporation of sufficient treatment 
drains to maintain or improve the existing water quality; the limitation of surface 
water run-off to equivalent greenfield rates; the ability to accommodate surface 
water run-off on-site up to the critical 1 in 100 year return period event plus an 
appropriate allowance for climate change, based upon the submission of 
drainage calculations. 
Full details for the drainage proposal  should  be  supplied  including,  but  not  
limited  to; construction details, cross sections, long sections, headwall details, 
pipe protection details  (e.g. trash screens), and full modelled scenarios for the 
1 in 1 year, 1 in 30 year and 1 in 100 year plus climate change storm events. 
 

2. Management of Surface Water Details should demonstrate how surface water  
will  be  managed  on  site  to  prevent an increase in flood risk during the 
various construction stages of development from initial site works through to 

Page 54



completion. This shall include temporary attenuation, additional treatment, 
controls, maintenance and protection. Details regarding the protection of any 
proposed infiltration areas should also be provided. 

 
3. Details of the surface water Maintenance Plan should include for routine 

maintenance, remedial actions and monitoring of the separate elements of the 
surface water drainage system that will not be adopted by a third party and will 
remain outside of individual householder ownership. 

 
4. The results of infiltration testing should conform to BRE Digest 365 Soakaway 

Design. The LLFA would accept the proposal of an alternative drainage strategy 
that could be used should infiltration results support an alternative approach. 

 
5.  Standing Advice – National Planning Policy Framework 

When determining planning applications, the local planning authority should ensure 
flood risk is not increased elsewhere and only consider development appropriate in 
areas at risk of flooding where informed by a site specific Flood Risk Assessment 
(FRA) confirming it will not put the users of the development at risk.   Where an FRA 
is applicable this should be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework and accompanying Planning Practice Guidance. 
 

6.   Standing Advice – Consent 
Where there are any works proposed as part of an application which are likely to affect 
flows in an ordinary watercourse or ditch, the applicant will require consent under 
Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act 1991. This is in addition to any planning 
permission that may be granted. Guidance on this process and a sample application 
form can be found via the following website: http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/flood-
risk-management 
 
Applicants are advised to refer to Leicestershire County Council’s culverting policy 
contained within the Local Flood Risk Management Strategy Appendix document, 
available at the above link. No development should take place within 5 metres of any 
watercourse or ditch without first contacting the County Council for advice. 
 
This consent does not consider local watercourse bylaws. It is the responsibility of the 
applicant to check if the local borough or district council has their own bylaws which 
the proposals will also need to consider. 
 

7.   Standing Advice – Maintenance 
Note that it is the responsibility of the Local Planning Authority under the 
DEFRA/DCLG legislation (April 2015) to ensure that a system to facilitate the future 
maintenance of SuDS features can be managed and maintained in perpetuity before 
commencement of the works.  
Additional information and guidance is available here: 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/environment-and-planning/flooding-and-drainage/  
 

8. Local Highways Authority notes:  

• Prior to construction, measures should be taken to ensure that users of the 
Public Right of Way (Footpath K35) are not exposed to any elements of danger 
associated with construction works. 

Page 55



• Planning Permission does not give you approval to work on the public highway. 
To carry out off-site works associated with this planning permission, separate 
approval must first be obtained from Leicestershire County Council as Local 
Highway Authority. This will take the form of a major section 184 permit/section 
278 agreement. It is strongly recommended that you make contact with 
Leicestershire County Council at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the 
process to be completed. The Local Highway Authority reserve the right to 
charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing maintenance where the item in 
question is above and beyond what is required for the safe and satisfactory 
functioning of the highway. For further information please refer to the 
Leicestershire Highway Design Guide which is available at 
https://resources.leicestershire.gov.uk/lhdg. 

• To erect temporary directional signage you must seek prior approval from the 
Local Highway Authority in the first instance (telephone 0116 305 0001). 

• All proposed off site highway works, and internal road layouts shall be designed 
in accordance with Leicestershire County Council’s latest design guidance, as 
Local Highway Authority. For further information please refer to the 
Leicestershire Highway Design Guide which is available at 
https://resources.leicestershire.gov.uk/lhdg. 

• The Public Right of Way must not be re-routed, encroached upon or obstructed 
in any way without authorisation. To do so may constitute an offence under the 
Highways Act 1980.  

• The Public Right of Way must not be further enclosed in any way without 
undertaking discussions with the Highway Authority (0116) 305 0001.  

• If the developer requires a Right of Way to be temporarily diverted, for a period 
of up to six months, to enable construction works to take place, an application 
should be made to networkmanagement@leics.gov.uk at least 12 weeks before 
the temporary diversion is required.  

• Any damage caused to the surface of a Public Right of Way, which is directly 
attributable to the works associated with the development, will be the 
responsibility of the applicant to repair at their own expense to the satisfaction 
of the Highway Authority.  

• No new gates, stiles, fences or other structures affecting a Public Right of Way, 
of either a temporary or permanent nature, should be installed without the 
written consent of the Highway Authority. Unless a structure is authorised, it 
constitutes an unlawful obstruction of a Public Right of Way and the County 
Council may be obliged to require its immediate removal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56

https://resources.leicestershire.gov.uk/lhdg
https://resources.leicestershire.gov.uk/lhdg


 
 

Page 57



Delegated planning decisions made by Charnwood Borough Council since the last Plans Committee report

Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0127/2 Land At Former 167
Gynsill Close
Anstey
Leicestershire

Erection of 2 detached dwellings
and garages and associated works.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

21-Apr-2022 Anstey

P/22/0256/2 35 Grove Lane
Barrow Upon Soar
Leicestershire
LE12 8NP

Change of Use of residential
dwelling (Use Class C3) to a mixed
use comprising residential (Use
Class C3) and  hair salon (Use
Class E) operating from detached
garden building to rear
(Retrospective application).

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

12-Apr-2022 Barrow & Sileby
West

P/22/0235/2 Barrowcliffe
41 Cotes Road
Barrow Upon Soar
Leicestershire
LE12 8JP

Erection of single storey extension
to rear and porch to side of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

21-Apr-2022 Barrow & Sileby
West

P/22/0439/2 77 Mill Lane
Barrow Upon Soar
LE12 8LQ

The erection of a single storey rear
extension extending beyond the rear
wall of the original house by 4.1 m,
with a maximum height of 4m, and
height to the eaves of 3m.

Householder
Prior
Notification

PRIREF, The prior approval of the
Council is refused

28-Apr-2022 Barrow & Sileby
West

P/21/2652/2 Humphrey Perkins School
72 - 78 Cotes Road
Barrow Upon Soar
Leicestershire
LE12 8JU

Construction of new two storey
classroom block

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

29-Apr-2022 Barrow & Sileby
West

P/21/2293/2 75 Fielding Road
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 3AH

Erection of detached double garage
at rear of house

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

11-Apr-2022 Birstall Wanlip

Page 1 of 21

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 6



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0270/2 10 Queensgate Drive
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 3JQ

Proposed single storey extension to
side and rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-Apr-2022 Birstall Wanlip

P/22/0295/2 72 Greengate Lane
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 3DL

Proposed single-storey extension to
rear and side of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

14-Apr-2022 Birstall Wanlip

P/22/0279/2 86 Elmfield Avenue
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 3DF

Extend width of dropped kerb to
front of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

29-Apr-2022 Birstall Wanlip

P/22/0317/2 2A Henson Close
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 3AR

Proposed single storey extension to
rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

04-May-2022 Birstall Wanlip

P/22/0246/2 32 Greengate Lane
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 3DJ

Proposed single storey side and rear
extension to dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

05-May-2022 Birstall Wanlip

P/22/0013/2 57 Sycamore Road
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 4LX

Proposed two storey extension to
side and rear, and single storey
extension to rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Birstall Wanlip
Birstall
Watermead

P/22/0109/2 73 Hill Rise
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 4LN

Erection of single storey extensions
to side and rear of semi-detached
dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Birstall
Watermead

Page 2 of 21

P
age 59



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0173/2 79 Orchard Road
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 4GD

Proposed construction of single
storey side and rear extension.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

14-Apr-2022 Birstall
Watermead

P/22/0327/2 11 Hill Rise,
Birstall,
Leicester,
Leicestershire
LE4 4LL

The erection of a single storey rear
extension extending beyond the rear
wall of the original house by 3.8m,
with a maximum height of 3.4m, and
height to the eaves of 2.6m.

Householder
Prior
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the
Council is not required

27-Apr-2022 Birstall
Watermead

P/21/1995/2 The Earl of Stamford
Front Street
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 4DQ

Replace existing 3no. antennnas
and replace 1no. cabinet to existing
telecommunications facility.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Birstall
Watermead

P/21/1782/2 473 Loughborough Road
Birstall
LE4 4BJ

Erection of detached house and
triple garage to rear (Variation of
Condition 2 of P/20/0505/2 to revise
approved plans) under Section 73 of
the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

09-May-2022 Birstall
Watermead

P/22/0427/2 3 Chestnut Way
East Goscote
Leicestershire
LE7 3QQ

Proposed single storey rear
extension.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

03-May-2022 East Goscote
Ward

P/22/0156/2 39 Grey Crescent
Newtown Linford
Leicestershire
LE6 0AA

Proposed construction of porch to
front and erection of single storey
extension to side and rear of
existing dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

21-Apr-2022 Forest Bradgate

Page 3 of 21

P
age 60



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2347/2 18 Grey Crescent
Newtown Linford
Leicestershire
LE6 0AA

Proposed new first floor level and
new basement levels erected, with
new rear extension to ground floor,
side and rear balcony, with
associated internal alterations and
landscaping.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

26-Apr-2022 Forest Bradgate

P/21/2265/2 Rushey Fields Farm
Rushey Lane
Woodhouse
Leicestershire
LE12 8UW

Replacement of 3no antennas to
existing headframe and associated
works

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Forest Bradgate

P/21/2522/2 Off Nearest DP100
Markfield Lane
Newtown Linford
Leicestershire
LE67 9PQ

Install 1 x 10m wooden pole (9.0m
above ground).

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Forest Bradgate

P/22/0144/2 17 Maplewell Road
Woodhouse Eaves
Leicestershire
LE12 8RG

Two storey rear extension to
dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

10-May-2022 Forest Bradgate

P/22/0018/2 50 Bird Hill Road
Woodhouse Eaves
Leicestershire
LE12 8RR

Certificate of lawful development
(proposed) for a loft conversion
including a rear dormer and two roof
lights on the front roof elevation.
Also the erection of a flue to the rear
of the property.

CL (Proposed) CLDPGRANT, Certificate of Lawful
Proposed Development

10-May-2022 Forest Bradgate

P/22/0165/2 233 Forest Road
Woodhouse
LE12 8TZ

Proposed two storey side and rear
extension, single storey rear
extension and side garage
extension.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

11-May-2022 Forest Bradgate

Page 4 of 21

P
age 61



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0189/2 178 Knightthorpe Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 4JX

Proposed 2 x face illuminated letters
on rails 1 x halo illuminated letters
on rails 1 x internally illuminated
panel 1 x externally illuminated post
sign.

Advert
Consent

GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

14-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Garendon

P/21/2527/2 127 Loughborough Road
Hathern
Leicestershire
LE12 5HZ

Proposed porch to front elevation,
addition of rooflights in front
elevation and changes to
fenestration; and construction of
2-storey extension including balcony
to rear of existing bungalow.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

29-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Hathern &
Dishley

P/21/1558/2 Baileys Plantation
Pear Tree Lane
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 4ZH

Replacement of 3no Antennas and
ancillary works thereto.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Hathern &
Dishley

P/21/0015/2 55A Dovecote Street
Hathern
Leicestershire
LE12 5HS

Installation of 1x 8m high wooden
pole

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Hathern &
Dishley

P/21/1521/2 58 Wide Street
Hathern
Leicestershire
LE12 5JH

Proposed single storey rear
extension to create toilet and
cloakroom.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

09-May-2022 Loughborough
Hathern &
Dishley

P/21/2367/2 Unit 12
Pavilion Way
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5GW

Erection of LPG Fuel tank to front of
light industrial building

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Lemyngton

Page 5 of 21

P
age 62



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2492/2 40 Herbert Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 1NX

Retention of trellis & Pergola to
ground floor, trellis & 2x Pergolas to
first floor balconies and trellis &
Pergola to second floor balcony
(retrospective).

Householder REF, Permission be refused for the
following reasons:

14-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Lemyngton

P/22/0482/2 49 Meadow Avenue
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 1JS

The erection of a single storey rear
extension extending beyond the rear
wall of the original house by 6m, with
a maximum height of 3.5m, and
height to the eaves of 2.6m. (Prior
Notification)

Householder
Prior
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the
Council is not required

21-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Lemyngton

P/22/0081/2 25 Swan Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5BL

Change of use from travel agency
(Use Class A1) to nail bar (Sui
Generis) and installation of
extraction ducting to rear elevation.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

21-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Lemyngton

P/22/0168/2 T Mat Engineering Ltd
Weldon Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5QS

Removal of 6no. antennas and 1no.
outdoor equipment cabinet,
installation of 6no. antenna and 3no.
cabinets.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Lemyngton

P/21/1893/2 Festival Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire

Replacement headframe, to support
6no. existing antennas & 3no.
proposed antennas

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Lemyngton

P/22/0325/2 21 Bottleacre Lane
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 1JE

Erection of porch to front, two storey
extension to side and rear and
single storey extension to rear of
house.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

10-May-2022 Loughborough
Lemyngton

P/21/2655/2 32 Coniston Crescent
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3RH

Single storey extension to rear of
detached dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Nanpantan

Page 6 of 21

P
age 63



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0204/2 38 Spinney Hill Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3LD

Front side and rear extensions with
roof alterations to existing dorma
bungalow

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

20-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Nanpantan

P/22/0594/2 Loughborough Central
Epinal Way
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3GE

Replacement of existing 17. 5m pole
with a 20m Orion pole; install 6 no.
antennas, and upgrade of
equipment in existing cabinets.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

21-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Nanpantan

P/22/0363/2 19 Highfields Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3JS

Proposed single storey side
extension.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

26-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Nanpantan

P/22/0471/2 6 Longcliffe Gardens
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3YQ

Certificate of Lawful (proposed)
development for single storey side
extension.

CL (Proposed) CLDPGRANT, Certificate of Lawful
Proposed Development

27-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Nanpantan

P/21/2141/2 11 Ashleigh Drive
Loughborough
LE11 3HN

Single storey rear extensionHouseholder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Loughborough
Nanpantan

P/21/2659/2 43 Mountfields Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3JD

Proposed two-storey extension to
side and rear, single storey
extension to rear of and canopy to
front of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Loughborough
Nanpantan

P/22/0688/2 Telecommunications site at
Epinal Way
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3GE

Replacement of 20m street furniture
style mast (RAL6009 Green)
incorporating 6 no. antennas and
ancillary works.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

05-May-2022 Loughborough
Nanpantan
Loughborough
Southfields

Page 7 of 21

P
age 64



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0046/2 15 Dunsmore Close
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3RD

Proposed single storey extension to
side, and dormer extension to rear
to form loft conversion including
rooflights to front of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Outwoods

P/22/0282/2 20 Valley Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3PZ

Proposed removal of existing
conservatory and erection of
replacement sunroom. Roof
alterations and conversion of
existing garage and stores to living
room. Proposed raising of decking
to rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Outwoods

P/22/0403/2 35 Tiverton Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2RU

Proposed single and first floor
extension to rear, and dormer
extension to front of dwelling.

Householder REF, Permission be refused for the
following reasons:

29-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Outwoods

P/22/0260/2 1 Cleveland Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2SP

Extensions to front, side and rear of
dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

04-May-2022 Loughborough
Outwoods

P/22/0716/2 Corner of Woodbrook Road
and Valley Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3QD

Replacement of 1 x 20m monopole
with associated antennas, and wrap
around cabinet. Installation of 2
cabinets and associated ancillary
works.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

06-May-2022 Loughborough
Outwoods

P/21/2464/2 124 Highland Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2HU

Erection of a single story rear
extension to adjoin existing garage
to the main dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Shelthorpe

P/22/0298/2 37 Ling Avenue
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2LN

Single storey extension to rear of
mid-terraced house.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

20-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Shelthorpe

Page 8 of 21

P
age 65



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0193/2 43 Shelthorpe Avenue
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2ND

Conversion of single house into 4
flats, with two storey rear extension
and additional first floor windows.

Full REF, Permission be refused for the
following reasons:

25-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Shelthorpe

P/22/0417/2 28 Parklands Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2TB

The erection of a single storey rear
extension extending beyond the rear
wall of the original house by 4.65m,
with a maximum height of 3.85m,
and height to the eaves of 2.47m.

Householder
Prior
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the
Council is not required

27-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Shelthorpe

P/22/0192/2 95 Beacon Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2BG

Proposed part 2-storey and part
single-storey rear extensions to
dwelling including insertion of
windows in side elevation at first
floor level and loft conversion.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/20/1454/2 Westfields
192 Ashby Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3AG

Erection of detached building for
student accommodation (6 x 1
bedroom apartments & 2 x 4
bedroom apartments) with
associated parking. Variation of
Conditions 2, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 16 &
17 of planning permission
P/19/0107/2.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/22/0352/2 139 Park Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2HD

Certificate of Lawfulness (Existing)
for use of property as a house of
multiple occupation (Use Class C4
HMO)

CL (existing) GTD, Permission be granted
unconditionally

13-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/21/2610/2 2-7 Market Street & 35 and
36 Cattle Market
Loughborough
LE11 3EP

Change of use of first and second
floors from Class E (Retail) to Class
C3 (Residential) to form 7no.
self-contained flats with associated
alterations and cycle/refuse store.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

14-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

Page 9 of 21

P
age 66



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0202/2 36 Mayfield Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2EB

Proposed single storey side and rear
extension and loft conversion.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

29-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/22/0147/2 33 - 34 High Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2PZ

Change of use from Use Class E(a)
(retail) to Use Class E (b) (sale of
food and drink) and installation of
extraction unit.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

04-May-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/22/0015/2 6 Arthur Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3AY

Removal of existing conservatory,
proposed single storey side and rear
extension and conversion of C3
Dwelling to provide 2 x 2 bed flats.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

04-May-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/21/2499/2 2A Oliver Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 2BZ

Extension to the front and side of
dwelling

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/22/0275/2 26 Burleigh Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3BA

Single Storey Extension to Rear of
Property

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

09-May-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/22/0088/2 50 Wallace Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3NX

Change of use dwelling (C3) to a
House in Multiple Occupation (C4)

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-May-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

P/21/2501/2 22 Westfield Drive
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 3QL

Proposed change of use from C3 to
C4 (HMO)

Full REF, Permission be refused for the
following reasons:

13-May-2022 Loughborough
Southfields

Page 10 of 21

P
age 67



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/1676/2 136 Paget Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5DU

Certificate of Lawfulness (Existing)
for use of property as a house of
multiple occupation (Use Class C4
HMO).

CL (existing) GTD, Permission be granted
unconditionally

13-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Storer

P/21/2389/2 Existing base station
Regent Street
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5PL

Removal 15 metre high monopole,
erection of 20m monopole
supporting 6 no antenna and 2 no
300mm dishes

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

20-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Storer

P/21/2384/2 18 Byron Street Extension
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5HE

Erection of single storey extension
to rear of house in multiple
occupation (Class C4)

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

28-Apr-2022 Loughborough
Storer

P/22/0320/2 157 Knightthorpe Road
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE11 5JR

The erection of a single storey rear
extension extending beyond the rear
wall of the original house by 4.7m,
with a maximum height of 2.8m, and
height to the eaves of 2.4m.

Householder
Prior
Notification

PRIGRA, The prior approval of the
Council is granted

06-May-2022 Loughborough
Storer

P/21/0186/2 74 Boundary Road
Mountsorrel
Leicestershire
LE12 7ER

Erection of 1 no. dwelling and
associated alterations to the roof of
the host dwelling, No. 74 Boundary
Road

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

29-Apr-2022 Mountsorrel

P/21/1364/2 4 Castle Road
Mountsorrel
LE12 7EU

Erection of a detached dwellingFull GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Mountsorrel

P/22/0218/2 23 New Street
Queniborough
Loughborough
Leicestershire
LE7 3FS

Single storey side extensionHouseholder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

27-Apr-2022 Queniborough

Page 11 of 21

P
age 68



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2227/2 20 School Lane
South Croxton
Leicestershire
LE7 3RT

Extension to raised parking area.Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

27-Apr-2022 Queniborough

P/22/0014/2 Spindlebank
99 Main Street
South Croxton
Leicestershire
LE7 3RL

Single storey extension to rear, first
floor extension above existing single
storey kitchen and application of
render to dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

04-May-2022 Queniborough

P/22/0324/2 11 Main Street
Barkby
Leicestershire
LE7 3QG

Change of use of existing dwelling to
financial and professional services
(Use Class E(c) (i) and (ii).

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

12-May-2022 Queniborough

P/22/0181/2 White House
60A Barkby Lane
Barkby
Leicestershire
LE7 2BB

Two storey rear extension including
balcony, and alterations to the roof.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-May-2022 Queniborough

P/21/2454/2 102 Warwick Avenue
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8HE

Proposed single storey side and rear
extension with demolition of existing
conservatory.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

P/22/0148/2 46 High Street
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8DT

Display of externally illuminated
freestanding sign and individual
letters fascia sign.

Advert
Consent

GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

P/22/0211/2 6 Toller Road
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8AH

Proposed single storey front
extension with alteration to existing
rear extension and replacement of
existing porch.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-Apr-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

Page 12 of 21

P
age 69



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2272/2 42 Leicester Road
Quorn
LE12 8ET

Single storey rear extensionHouseholder REF, Permission be refused for the
following reasons:

22-Apr-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

P/21/0979/2 Quorn Football Club
Sutton Park
Farley Way
Quorn
Leicestershire

Upgrade electronic communications
apparatus/development ancillary to
radio equipment housing

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

P/20/2144/2 Mast at Quorn Football Club
Farley Way
Quorn
Leicestershire

Replacement antennas and
associated ancillary development

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

P/21/2284/2 Quorn Football Club
Sutton Park
Farley Way
Quorn
Leicestershire

Removal of 6No. antennas,
installation of 3No. antennas,
replacement cabinate

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

P/22/0303/2 2 Cradock Drive
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8EP

Proposed two storey and single
storey side extensions, single storey
rear extension and new outbuilding

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

29-Apr-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

P/22/0301/2 10 Cradock Drive
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8EP

Two storey side extensionHouseholder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

P/21/2568/2 88 Woodhouse Road
Quorn
Leicestershire
LE12 8AJ

Proposed alterations to fenestration
to front and rear elevations and
construction of external steps to rear
with area of raised patio.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

11-May-2022 Quorn &
Mountsorrel
Castle

Page 13 of 21

P
age 70



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0255/2 10 Waterfield Road
Cropston
Leicestershire
LE7 7HN

Proposed first floor side extension
above garage.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

11-Apr-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/22/0099/2 Land to the north of
Farnham Bridge Farm and
off Loughborough Road
Rothley
Leicestershire

Retention of use of land for the
storage of upto 12 heavy goods
vehicles. (Sui Generis)

Full REF, Permission be refused for the
following reasons:

13-Apr-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/22/0239/2 The Old School
62 Anstey Lane
Thurcaston
Leicestershire
LE7 7JA

Change of use to garden land
(Retrospective)

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

28-Apr-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/21/2183/2 Woodcock Farm 903
Loughborough Road
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7NH

Removal of 1no. cabinet, intallation
of 1no. cabinet

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/21/1327/2 Wilson and Sons
Leicester Road
Mountsorrel
Leicestershire
LE7 7NL

Replacement of 3no. existing
antennas with 3no. upgraded
antennas and installation of 1no.
GPS unit.affixed to existing latice
tower

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/21/0529/2 Woodcock Farm
 Loughborough Road
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7NH

The installation addition of 1no.
GPS Node and ancillary
development

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

Page 14 of 21

P
age 71



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/1919/2 2 Rushey Lane
Rothley
LE7 7SD

Various works to dwelling including:
single storey front and rear
extensions, extensions to roof
space, external wall insulation,
rendering and the installation of roof
lights, roof-mounted solar panels
and the erection of new fencing.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

04-May-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/22/0272/2 4 All Saints Road
Thurcaston
Leicestershire
LE7 7JD

Erection of single storey extension
to rear of detached house.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/22/0101/2 23 Causeway Lane
Cropston
Leicestershire
LE7 7GD

Installation of solar panels to
roofscape to front of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

11-May-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/22/0335/2 30 North Street
Rothley
Leicestershire
LE7 7NN

Proposed single storey Orangery
extension and part first floor
extension as en-suite to bedroom.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

12-May-2022 Rothley &
Thurcaston

P/21/2608/2 57 Fairway Road
Shepshed
Leicestershire
LE12 9BL

Erection of single storey extension
to rear of detached house and
conversion of garage to living space.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

14-Apr-2022 Shepshed East

P/22/0224/2 52C Iveshead Road
Shepshed
Leicestershire
LE12 9ER

Erection of two storey extension to
side and single storey  to rear of
detached dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

21-Apr-2022 Shepshed East

P/22/0019/2 7 Woodpecker Way
Shepshed
Leicestershire
LE12 9WF

Proposed two storey side extension,
conversion of existing garage and
erection of brickwork garden wall to
the front of the property.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

22-Apr-2022 Shepshed East

Page 15 of 21

P
age 72



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/1304/2 19 Pentland Avenue
Shepshed
LE12 9BH

Proposed single storey side and rear
extension.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

03-May-2022 Shepshed East

P/22/0435/2 Adams Car Sales
Ashby Road West
Shepshed
LE12 9EE

LED electronic advertising display.Advert
Consent

REF, Permission be refused for the
following reasons:

05-May-2022 Shepshed West

P/21/2570/2 Paynes Barn
Ratcliffe Road
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7PY

Proposed extension to side and rear
of bungalow.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Sileby

P/21/2671/2 8 Quaker Road
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7SA

Proposed two storey extension to
side and single storey extension to
rear of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

12-Apr-2022 Sileby

P/22/0588/2 O/S 19 Barradale Avenue
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7TB

Installation of fixed line broadband
electronic communications
apparatus (Prior Notification)

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

21-Apr-2022 Sileby

P/22/0201/2 Bull Park Cottage
33 Little Church Lane
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7NE

Proposed extension to existing
outbuilding to form residential
annexe and garage/ workshop.
Proposed new access and parking
courtyard.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

26-Apr-2022 Sileby

P/21/2552/2 92 The Banks
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7RE

Single storey side and rear
extension to dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Sileby

Page 16 of 21

P
age 73



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/0742/2 99 Cossington Road
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7RP

The erection of a single storey rear
extension extending beyond the rear
wall of the original house by 4.95m,
with a maximum height of 3m, and
height to the eaves of 3m

Householder
Prior
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the
Council is not required

11-May-2022 Sileby

P/22/0372/2 21 The Banks
Sileby
Leicestershire
LE12 7RD

Construction of single storey rear
extension and dropped kerb to front
of dwelling.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-May-2022 Sileby

P/22/0257/2 10 Brighton Avenue
Syston
Leicestershire
LE7 2EB

Proposed two storey side extension
and roof alterations.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

12-Apr-2022 Syston East

P/22/0258/2 19 Roman Way
Syston
Leicestershire
LE7 1GE

Proposed two storey extension to
side, single storey link extension to
side/rear to adjoin garage
conversion to garden room.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Syston West

P/21/2254/2 14 Lindum Close
Syston
LE7 1ZA

Proposed single storey side and rear
extension and front porch.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

11-May-2022 Syston West

P/22/0299/2 19 Springfield Close
Burton On The Wolds
Leicestershire
LE12 5AN

Proposed roof alterations to replace
existing sloped roof and dormer
window at the front of the dwelling
with a conventional hipped roof.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 The Wolds

P/21/2517/2 8 St Philips Road
Burton On The Wolds
Leicestershire
LE12 5TS

Demolition of existing conservatory
and erection of a new single storey
rear extension to dwelling

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

11-Apr-2022 The Wolds

Page 17 of 21

P
age 74



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0022/2 7 London Lane
Wymeswold
Leicestershire
LE12 6UB

Proposed single storey rear
extension, first floor extension to
make two storey dwelling and
material changes with associated
works.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

26-Apr-2022 The Wolds

P/21/1411/2 Stanford Lane
Cotes
Leicestershire
LE12 5TW

Notification of installation of
electronic communications cabinet.
(Permitted Development
Notification)

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 The Wolds

P/22/0196/2 Walton View
20 Hall Drive
Burton On The Wolds
Leicestershire
LE12 5AD

Proposed conversion of existing
garage and construction of detached
double garage.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

29-Apr-2022 The Wolds

P/21/1954/2 Wymeswold Industrial Park
Wymeswold Lane
Burton on the Wold
Leicestershire
LE12 5TY

The removal of the existing 3 no.
antennas and the installation of 3
no. replacement antennas, 9 no.
RRUs and 1 no GPS module.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 The Wolds

P/21/2408/2 Pear Tree Farm
39 Old Parsonage Lane
Hoton
Leicestershire
LE12 5SG

Formation of first floor
terrace/balcony to rear and access
door, provision of roof glazing above
kitchen and insertion of ground floor
window to end gable of detached
dwelling

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

09-May-2022 The Wolds

P/22/0273/2 110 Humberstone Lane
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8HF

Retrospective application for a
single storey rear extension with a
light grey render finish.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

14-Apr-2022 Thurmaston

P/22/0043/2 923 Melton Road
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8EF

Proposed demolition of existing rear
single storey extension. Proposed
construction of larger single storey
rear extension in similar position.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

20-Apr-2022 Thurmaston

Page 18 of 21

P
age 75



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/22/0428/2 14 Westdown Drive
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8HT

The erection of a single storey rear
extension extending beyond the rear
wall of the original house by 4.5m,
with a maximum height of 3.9m, and
height to the eaves of 2.7m.

Householder
Prior
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the
Council is not required

26-Apr-2022 Thurmaston

P/21/2678/2 23 Campbell Avenue
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8HD

Proposed single storey detached
annex to rear of existing dwelling to
replace existing store/ garage
building.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

26-Apr-2022 Thurmaston

P/21/2066/2 Highways Products Ltd
Knights Close
Earls Way
Thurmaston
Leicestershire

Replacement of 3 No. antennas and
1No. GPD node to existing
telecommunications facility.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Thurmaston

P/21/0872/2 O/S 50 Colby Drive
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8LA

Install 1 x 9m wooden pole (7.2m
above ground)

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Thurmaston

P/21/2308/2 Highway Products
Knights Close/Earls Way
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8EW

Replacement of 3 No. existing
antennas

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022 Thurmaston

P/22/0515/2 42 Colby Road
Thurmaston
Leicestershire
LE4 8LF

The erection of a single storey rear
extension extending beyond the rear
wall of the original house by
7.988m, with a maximum height of
3.8m, and height to the eaves of
2.6m.

Householder
Prior
Notification

PRINOT, Prior approval from the
Council is not required

05-May-2022 Thurmaston

Page 19 of 21

P
age 76



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/2271/2 Land adjacent to 40 Clayton
Drive
Thurmaston
Leicestershire

Erection of 2 detached dwellings.Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

06-May-2022 Thurmaston

P/21/2241/2 1 Old Gate Road
Thrussington
LE7 4TL

Demolition of existing property and
construction of replacement
dwelling.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

08-Apr-2022 Wreake Villages

P/22/0067/2 Wreake House Farm
Regent Street
Thrussington
Leicestershire
LE7 4UB

Erection of 3 detached houses -
Removal or variation of conditions 7
& 8 of P/04/2301/2 (relating to the
timing of road surfacing works)
under Section 73 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-Apr-2022 Wreake Villages

P/22/0287/2 Seagrave Village Primary
School
Green Lane
Seagrave
Leicestershire
LE12 7LU

Replacement of existing timber
windows and doors. Erection of
replacement canopy over external
doorway.

Full GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

20-Apr-2022 Wreake Villages

P/21/2677/2 15 Back Lane
Cossington
Leicestershire
LE7 4UQ

Two storey side and rear extension
to dwelling, single storey rear
extension and erection of new
garden wall.

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

29-Apr-2022 Wreake Villages

P/22/0229/2 139 Main Street
Cossington
Leicestershire
LE7 4UX

Alterations to outbuilding to rear of
dwelling

Householder GTDCON, Permission be granted
subject to the following conditions:

13-May-2022 Wreake Villages

P/20/2145/2 3A New Walks
Shepshed
Leicestershire
LE12 9AP

Install 1 x 10m wooden pole (8.2m
above ground).

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022

Page 20 of 21

P
age 77



Application
number

Application
type

Location Proposal Decision Decision date Ward

P/21/0704/2 Loughborough Road
Birstall
Leicestershire
LE4 4AJ

Replacement of 3no antenna;
installation of 6no. RRUs and
devedevelopment ancillary reworks

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022

P/21/2110/2 Birstall Golf Club, Station
Road
Station Road
Birstall
Leicestershire

Replacement of 6no. existing
antennas for 18no. active routers on
existing poles and mounting bracket,
ground based ancillary equipment
mounted on support poles of 24no.
remote radio units and 18no.
passive routers.

Equipment PD
Notification

MNAAU, The application be agreed
without conditions.

29-Apr-2022

Page 21 of 21

P
age 78


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Planning Applications
	P.21.0550.2 - Main Street Woodthorpe 11.5.22

	6 List of Applications Determined under Delegated Powers

